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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 255 4 22

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Y 5
Audited results for
the year ended 30th April,
BREMH=1HIHEEZ Increase
BRG] (decrease)
2012 2011 e
e St S —F—f (D)
Turnover (HK$'000) SR (THoT) 279,131 353,998 (74,867)
Loss for the year AAE 1R
(HKS$°000) (Fi#C) (6,487) (13,153) (6,666)
Loss per share (HKS) T B8 (o) (0.01) (0.02) 0.01)
EBITDA (HKS$’000) EBITDA (T/#7C)
(Note 1) (H17t1) 5,337 2,471 2,866

(Audited)
As at

30th April,
2012

()
) g St 3
WH=1H

FRBEEARLR %)
(Ktat2)

Net debt gearing ratio (%)

(Note2) 14%

(Audited)

As at

30th April,
2011

(RF%)
B
A=+ H

Decrease
b

28% (14%)

Notes : Bt -
1. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) is 1.
computed as loss before tax plus depreciation, interest on bank and other
loans, share-based payments expense, the provision of inventories and bad
and doubtful debts, impairment loss on available-for-sale investment,
impairment loss on balances with a former subsidiary and less reversal of
provision of inventories, reversal of impairment loss on balances with a
former subsidiary and imputed interest income.

2. Net debt gearing ratio is defined as total debts, including borrowings, 2.
obligations under finance leases, trust receipt loans and bills payable less
bank balances and cash over shareholders’ equity.
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GEOGRAPHICAL TURNOVER ANALYSIS
il [t SR A

GEOGRAPHICAL TURNOVER ANALYSIS FOR THE YEARS ENDED
30TH APRIL, 2012 AND 2011
BRE AR RN = H IR Z S0 B R E B

TURNOVER ANALYSIS BY PERCENTAGE
B 2y WO 2 B BT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
A

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”), 1
hereby present the results of QPL International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 30th April, 2012.

For the year under review, the Group reported a turnover of
HK$279,131,000, representing a decrease of 21% as compared with
HK$353,998,000 for the last year. Nevertheless, the management took
effective steps to control costs in light of the falling revenues. Accordingly,
the Group’s consolidated loss for the year was HK$6,487,000, which was
lower than last year’s loss of HK$13,153,000. Basic loss per share was
HK1 cent (2011: HK2 cents).

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
(2011: nil).

The Group faced many challenges in the tough business environment in
this financial year. After the buoyant business performance of the
previous year, turnover slowed in the first half of this year because of
weakened customer demand caused by looming economic uncertainty.
The situation deteriorated further in the second half of the year on the
back of the sovereign debt crises in Europe and disruptions at the
production facilities of certain major customers caused by the extensive
flooding in Thailand. As a result, the Group experienced a sharp
contraction in turnover over the second half of the year. Taken as a whole,
revenue for the year did not meet expectations. By geographical
distribution, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the Asian
countries (which included Hong Kong, Philippines, Malaysia, Singapore,
Thailand, Indonesia, India and Korea) were the top markets, which
contributed 45% (2011: 38%) and 40% (2011: 49%) respectively of the
Group’s turnover for the year.

In terms of cost of materials and operating costs, the Group also
encountered unfavourable conditions. In the first half of the year, global
economic growth in emerging economies fueled a significant rise in global
commodity prices, which resulted in an increase in the cost of raw
materials. The rise in operating costs in the PRC and the steady
appreciation of the Chinese Renminbi undercut profit margins.
Nevertheless, the rising trend of cost of materials and operating costs
abated in the second half of the year. Commodity prices dropped in
response to the economic downturn and operating costs stabilised as a
result of monetary measures undertaken in the PRC to tame inflation.

ANGHEWARES G ([EHe o[ #E3 ] RE2QPL
International Holdings Limited ([ 4/ ] |) S Hfff
A E] (FiAE AL ) e —F— W H =+ H
IR 2 24k -

A B RAR > AR [ Bk A5 2E470279,131,00045 G
5 4F353,998,0003 L8 21% © SR > 45 G E
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
F A

In order to alleviate the adverse effects brought on by market conditions
and the increased level of costs, actions were taken to control costs of
materials and manufacturing costs. Through increasing product price,
improving production efficiency, reducing expenditure on labour,
trimming consumable materials, careful regulation of inventory and
stringent control of expenditure, the Group managed to increase its
margins and lower its total operating costs, thereby sustaining its
competitive edge. As a result, the net loss for the year was lower than it
would otherwise have been, given the 21% decrease in turnover.

The Group’s cash and bank balances amounted to HK$13,878,000 as at
30th April, 2012. (2011: HK$8,952,000). To finance its working capital,
the Group’s total outstanding debts were HK$25,410,000 as at 30th April,
2012 (2011: HK$33,320,000), which comprised HK$10,719,000 (2011:
HK$13,358,000) of trust receipt loans and bills payable; HK$3,646,000
(2011: HK$7,786,000) of unsecured bank loan; HK$506,000 (2011:
HK$1,637,000) of obligations under finance leases; and a HK$10,539,000
(2011: HK$10,539,000) loan from a director. In terms of interest cost,
HK$14,871,000 (2011: HK$22,781,000) was interest bearing and
HK$10,539,000 (2011: HK$10,539,000) was interest free.

The net debt gearing ratio was maintained at 14% as at 30th April, 2012
(2011: 28%).

The Group’s transactions are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars and Chinese Renminbi. The Group has not
implemented any formal hedging policy. However, the Group monitors its
foreign exchange exposure continuously and, where appropriate and
necessary, would consider hedging significant foreign exposures by way of
foreign exchange contracts.

As at 30th April, 2012, plant and equipment with a carrying value of
HKS$1,752,000 (2011: HK$2,488,000) was pledged to secure finance leases
(2011: certain banking facilities, bank loan and finance leases) granted to
the Group.

10-11
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EViE el

During the year ended 30th April, 2012, the Group invested HK$7,289,000
(2011: HK$19,954,000) in acquiring property, plant and equipment. The
capital expenditure was financed mainly from internal financial resources.

As at 30th April, 2012, the total number of employees of the Group was
902 (2011: 1,267). The Group maintains its emolument policy to ensure
that employee remuneration is commensurate with job nature,
qualifications and experience. The Group continues to offer competitive
remuneration packages, share options and other benefits to eligible staff,
based on the performance of the Group and the individual employees.

The fees of the Directors and emolument of senior management are
determined with reference to their respective duties and responsibilities,
expertise and experience in the industry, the performance and profitability
of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from other companies
and prevailing market conditions. Whilst the Board retains its power to
determine the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the responsibility
for reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management of the Company is delegated
to the Remuneration Committee.

Global economic prospects remain uncertain. Nevertheless, with the
resumption, by industry trend-setting companies, of production
interrupted by the tsunami in Japan and flooding in Thailand, the
semiconductor market has shown signs of recovery as reflected in the
increased level of orders received by the Group recently. The
semiconductor market will continue to be affected directly and indirectly
by the Euro zone financial crisis and the potential adverse economic
impact resulting from it. We are cautiously optimistic that the
semiconductor market will continue to recover absent adverse
macroeconomic conditions that could put a stop to positive momentum.
To overcome the challenges ahead, the Group is committed to availing
itself of every means to promote the healthy growth of its business and
the effective management of resources. In addition, the Group will
explore other business opportunities, which would bring improved returns
and enhanced value to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EViE el

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to express
our sincere gratitude to all staff for their dedication and contributions to
the Group. My sincere appreciation is also extended to all customers,
business partners and Shareholders for their continuing support.

By Order of the Board

Li Tung Lok

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 26th July, 2012
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
5 % 5 A B LA R

Mr. Li Tung Lok, aged 60, is the founder of the Group. Mr. Li has been
an Executive Director and Executive Chairman of the Board since
January 1989. Mr. Li has also served as the Chief Executive of the
Company since January 1989 (except for the period from February 2004
to December 2008). He is also a member of Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Li is responsible for the Group’s corporate strategic
planning, overall management, business and product development. He
has a B. Sc. Degree in Chemical Engineering and over 36 years of
experience in servicing the semiconductor industry.

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick, aged 42, has been an Executive Director since
December 2008. He is responsible for the Group’s overall sales, services
and supplies management. Mr. Phen obtained his bachelor’s degree in
Engineering from Loughborough University of Technology,
Loughborough, United Kingdom. He has over 19 years of experience in
semiconductor sales, services and supplies management through his
previous employment with different companies in Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Phen had worked as a Customer Services
Engineer and then a Deputy Director, Account Management of ASAT
Limited, a subsidiary of ASAT Holdings Limited which is an associated
company of the Group during 1991 to 1996, and then from 1996 to 2001
was a Sales Director at SMI Limited, a subsidiary of SDI Corporation, a
company incorporated in Taiwan and listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson, aged 56, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since October 1994. He has also been
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Nicholson is a graduate of the University of Kent, qualified as a
solicitor in England and Wales in 1980 and in Hong Kong in 1982. He has
wide experience in corporate finance and cross border transactions,
including mergers and acquisitions, regional telecommunications, debt
and equity capital markets, corporate reorganizations and privatizations
of stated-owned enterprises in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

eI T INLIN

Mr. Nicholson is an Executive Director of First Pacific Company Limited
and an Independent Non-executive Director of Pacific Basin Shipping
Limited, both of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also an Executive Chairman of
Forum Energy Plc, a Commissioner of PT Indofood Sukses Makmur
Tbk, and a Director of Metro Pacific Investments Corporation, Philex
Mining Corporation and Philex Petroleum Corporation. Previously, he
was a senior partner of Richards Butler from 1985 to 2001 where he
established the corporate and commercial department, and was also a
senior advisor to the board of directors of PCCW Limited between
August 2001 and September 2003.

Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert, aged 71, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since April 2000. He has also been the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Sze is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He was a partner in an international firm of accountants with which he
practised for over 20 years. He is an Independent Non-executive Director
of Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holdings Limited, China Travel
International Investment Hong Kong Limited, Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited, Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, Hop Hing Group
Holdings Limited, Min Xin Holdings Limited, Nanyang Holdings
Limited and Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited, all of which
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since April 2000. He has also been
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Wong is currently the managing partner of a firm of certified public
accountants in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong,
respectively. Mr. Wong is also an associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 30 years’ experience in
auditing, taxation, accounting and financial management.

Mr. Wong is the ex-Chairman of the Executive Committee of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) in Hong Kong.
He is also an ex-member of the Inland Revenue Department Users’
Committee. Mr. Wong is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of World Wide Touch Technology (Holdings) Limited, of which
is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

TYI T IN LN

Ms. Tsui Lai Ki Vicki, aged 36, joined the Group since December 2011 as
the Company Secretary. Ms. Tsui is an associate member of both The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She
holds a bachelor in accountancy from the University of South Australia
and has over 16 years of experience in the company secretarial field.

Mr. Lee Kam Tong Joe, aged 52, joined the Group since June 1996 and
was appointed as the Group Financial Controller in November 2011. Mr.
Lee holds a Master of Business Administration from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He is also an associate member of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants of England and the Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada. Mr. Lee has over 25 years of
experience in financial management and internal control with listed
companies, commercial entities and an international audit firm.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
SRR

The Company is committed to building and maintaining best practice
standards of corporate governance. The corporate governance principles
of the Company emphasize a quality Board, effective internal controls,
stringent disclosure practices and transparency, independence and
accountability to all Shareholders of the Company.

The Company has adopted its own Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “QPL Code”) incorporating the principles and code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Existing CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). The Stock Exchange
published its consultation conclusions on the review of the Existing CG
Code in October 2011 and renamed it the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Revised CG Code”), setting out the amendments that are to be
made in 2012. The QPL Code has been revised in order to align it with the
Revised CG Code which came into effect on 1st April, 2012. A copy of
the QPL Code is posted on the Company’s website (www.qpl.com).

For the year ended 30th April, 2012, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all the code provisions set out in the Existing
CG Code and the Revised CG Code except for the deviations explained in
the relevant paragraphs below. Nevertheless, such deviations are
considered by the Board to be immaterial given the size, nature and
circumstances of the Company.

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. Responsibilities
of the Board include but are not limited to the formulation of the Group’s
strategy and policies, setting of corporate and management targets and
key operational initiatives, monitoring and control of operational and
financial performance, and approval of major capital expenditures, major
investments, material acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate or
financial restructuring and significant operational financial and
management matters.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group’s businesses to the executive management under the supervision of
the chief executive of the Company (“Chief Executive”). The division of
responsibilities between the Board and the management is set out in the
QPL Code.
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Three Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, have also
been established to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs.
Details of these three committees are set out below.

The Company has established a policy enabling the Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense. The Board will provide separate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist them to discharge their duties
to the Company.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Group, and that the balance between executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors is sufficient to provide adequate checks for
safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders and to enable the Board to
exercise independent judgment.

During the year under review and up to the date of this Annual Report,
the Board consists of two executive Directors, one of whom is the founder
of the Group, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive, and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors
Li Tung Lok ( Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive)
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick (Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Robert Charles Nicholson

Sze Tsai To Robert

Wong Chun Bong Alex

The Directors have extensive industry knowledge and experience in
corporate management, strategic planning, legal, accounting and financial
matters. Of the five Directors, two independent non-executive Directors
are qualified accountants. Biographical details of the Directors are set out
in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
section on pages 13 to 15 of this Annual Report. The information is also
available on the Company’s website (www.qpl.com). In addition, a list
containing the names of the Directors and their roles and functions is
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Throughout the year under review, the Board has complied with Rules
3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules in having at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing at least one-third of
the Board) with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each existing independent non-executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all existing independent non-
executive Directors to be independent on the basis of the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson, who is to retire by rotation at the 2012
annual general meeting of the Company, has served as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company for more than 9 years. In addition
to his confirmation of independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, Mr. Nicholson continues to demonstrate the attributes of
an independent non-executive Director and there is no evidence that his
tenure has had any impact on his independence. The Board is of the
opinion that Mr. Nicholson remains independent notwithstanding the
length of his service and it believes that his valuable knowledge and
experience in the Group’s business and his general business acumen
continue to generate significant contribution to the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business or
family or other material/relevant relationship between the members of the
Board.

The Company provides relevant reading materials to all of the Directors
to help ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in the
commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director to ensure that the
Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend external forums or
training courses on relevant topics which count towards Continuous
Professional Development training. The Directors also disclose to the
Company their interests as directors or other offices in other public
companies in a timely manner and provide updates to the Company on
any subsequent changes.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Revised CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, half of the Directors (excluding
Director(s) holding office as executive chairman and/or managing director,
who is/are, by virtue of Bermuda law, exempted from retirement by
rotation) shall retire from office at each annual general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election. As the executive Chairman
of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is not subject to retirement by rotation. In
order to comply with Code Provision A.4.2, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed
to voluntarily retire and be re-elected at least once every three years. At
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 18th September,
2012 (the “2012 AGM™), Mr. Li will voluntarily retire from office and will
be subject to re-election as executive Director.

The Company currently does not have a Director holding office as its
managing director.

A retiring Director is eligible for re-election and the re-election of retiring
Directors at general meetings is dealt with by separate individual
resolutions. Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates are proposed
and put forward to the Board for consideration and approval. The
Shareholders may propose a candidate for election as a Director in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. The procedures for such
proposal are published on the website of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of not more
than three years, subject to retirement and re-election pursuant to the
Bye-laws of the Company.
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BOARD MEETINGS
During the year under review, five Board meetings were held. The
attendance record of each member of the Board is set out below.

WAk
EIREAEERN > GETLKERGE® o KSERY
A 2 G SRS

Meeting Attendance/Eligible to attend

kR KR R
2011 Annual

Members of the Board Board Meeting General Meeting
C S 2

WHEHRE WRGER JBeRMAE R &
Executive Directors PTG
Li Tung Lok ( Chairman of the Board and — Z=[7) 44 ( 35 35 6 1= /i FE 172U #)

Chief Executive) 5/5 v
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick (Senior Vice UG (5 7 R B A e AR A A )

President of Sales and Marketing) 515 v
Independent Non-executive Directors B JEPAT
Robert Charles Nicholson G e 5/5 X
Sze Tsai To Robert 18 5/5 X
Wong Chun Bong Alex EHRF 5/5 v

In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman will at least annually
hold meetings with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the presence of the executive Directors.

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis.
The Bye-laws allow Board meetings to be conducted by means of a
conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of
which all persons participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each
other. Also, a resolution in writing signed by each of the Directors for the
time being in the relevant territories shall, provided such Directors would
constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board convened to consider
the resolution, be valid and effectual.

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board meetings and reasonable notice
for non-regular Board meetings are given to all Directors so as to ensure
that each of them had an opportunity to attend the meetings. The
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) assists
the Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are sent in full to all Directors at least 3 days
before the date of the Board meeting.

After the meeting, draft minutes of the Board meeting are circulated to all
Directors for their comment before execution and approval. All Board
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and available for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice given by the Directors.
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Code Provision A.2.1 of the Revised CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Li Tung Lok has been the Chairman of the Board since the
establishment of the Company in January 1989. Mr. Li has also served as
the Chief Executive since December 2008. Being the founder of the
Group, Mr. Li’s industry expertise and detailed understanding of the
Company’s operations is highly regarded by the Company. Accordingly,
vesting the roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive in Mr. Li
adds significant value to the Company’s business growth while enhancing
the efficiency of the decision-making process in response to the changing
environment. Given all major decisions are reserved to the Board and a
majority of the Board members are independent non-executive Directors,
the Company considers that there is an adequate balance of power and
authority in place between the Board and the management of the
Company.

The Audit Committee was established in April 2000 pursuant to the then
Code of Best Practice of the Listing Rules.

Throughout the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
Report, the Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert (being the Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson and Mr. Wong Chun
Bong Alex. Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex are
qualified accountants with extensive experience in accounting, audit and
financial matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been reviewed and
revised with reference to the Revised CG Code. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange and also available from the Company Secretary on
request.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee include:

- overseeing the relationship between the Group and its external
auditor;

- reviewing the appointment of the external auditor to ensure
continuing auditor’s independence;

- reviewing the Group’s financial information; and

- assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing an
independent review and supervision of the Group’s financial
reporting system, and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system.
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The annual report for the year ended 30th April, 2012 has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. The attendance
record of each member of the Audit Committee is set out below.

HEF-FNUA=1THIERCHEREE S
Y o

W BN BT SR - BRERES
LR R RTIT

Meeting Attendance/
Members of the Audit Committee Eligible to attend
C Lt v
HFRZHEORA ga-editl
Independent Non-executive Directors W AT e
Sze Tsai To Robert ( Chairman of the Audit Committee) SR (FEE A G 3/3
Robert Charles Nicholson L AEED 3/3
Wong Chun Bong Alex FIRFP 3/3
During the year under review, work performed by the Audit Committee A FIB4FEEE N » 9 41% 2% B & #AT 2 TAETE -
included:
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Meeting with the Chief Executive and senior management of the
Company from time to time to review the interim and final results,
the interim report and annual report and other financial, internal
control, corporate governance and risk management matters of
the Group and making recommendations to the Board;

Considering and discussing the reports and presentations of
senior management and the external auditor, with a view to
ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong;

Meeting, with the external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“DTT”), to discuss its independent review of the interim financial
report and its annual audit of the consolidated financial
statements (as the case may be, without the Company’s
management being present);

Assisting the Board in meeting its responsibilities for maintaining
an effective system of internal control;

Reviewing the report prepared by an external firm of qualified
accountants in relation to the review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control systems; and

reviewing and approving the revised Terms of Reference of the
Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process. It
receives each year the engagement letter from the external auditor
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings with
representatives of the external auditor to consider the scope of its audit,
approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of non-audit services,
if any, to be provided by it. The Audit Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and retention of the
external auditor.

The Group’s policy regarding the engagement of DTT for the various
services listed below is as follows:

- Audit services — include audit services provided in connection with
the audit of the consolidated financial statements. All such
services are to be provided by the external auditor.

- Non-audit services — include services that would normally be
provided by an external auditor but not generally included in
audit fees, for example, review of the interim financial report.

- Taxation related services — include all tax compliance and tax
planning services. The Group uses the services of the external
auditor where it is best suited.

For the year ended 30th April, 2012, the DTT fees, amounting to
HK$1,000,000, were primarily for audit services and those for non-audit

services (including review of interim report and tax services) amounted to
HK$392,000, 28.2% of the total fees.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23rd January, 2006.
Since its establishment, the Remuneration Committee has consisted of
one executive Director, namely Mr. Li Tung Lok, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson (being
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert
and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been
reviewed and revised with reference to the Revised CG Code. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange and also available from the
Company Secretary on request.
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The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

- making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration;

- reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.

No meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year.
The written resolutions procedure was adopted to deal with the business
of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year under review, work performed by the Remuneration
Committee included:

- reviewing and fixing the remuneration of executive Directors and
senior management;

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the independent non-executive Directors; and

- reviewing and approving the revised Terms of Reference of the
Remuneration Committee.

The fees of the Directors and emolument of senior management are
determined with reference to their respective duties and responsibilities,
expertise and experience in the industry, the performance and profitability
of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from other companies
and prevailing market conditions. Whilst the Board retains its power to
determine the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the responsibility
for reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management of the Company is delegated
to the Remuneration Committee.
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Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors from the
Company and its Group companies. The amounts paid to each Director
for the year ended 30th April, 2012 are as below:

Other emoluments

oAb 4

Salaries and Retirement
Other Benefit Total
Name of Directors Fees Benefits Schemes Emoluments

Bk BT
WHREH s HAbFA LiE T A
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#L T#L T#IL T#IL
Li Tung Lok 2 [) 4 131 - - 131
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick EAGSE — 1,485 74 1,559
Robert Charles Nicholson HEE 375 — - 375
Sze Tsai To Robert k] ) 500 - - 500
Wong Chun Bong Alex TR 300 - - 300
Total RSy 1,306 1,485 74 2,865

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 23rd January, 2006. Since
its establishment, the Nomination Committee has consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex
(being the Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Robert Charles
Nicholson and Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been reviewed
and revised with reference to the Revised CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and also available from the Company
Secretary on request.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

- reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

- identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the Board
on the candidates nominated for directorships;

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular, the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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No meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the year. The
written resolutions procedure was adopted to deal with the business of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included:

- reviewing the annual confirmation of independence submitted by
the independent non-executive Directors and assessing their
independence; and

- reviewing and approving the revised Terms of Reference of the
Nomination Committee.

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules for dealings in the securities of the Company by
Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have fully complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year under review.

Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group at the end of the year under review and
of the results of operation and cash flows of the Group for the year under
review.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year under
review, the Directors have:

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them on a
consistent basis;

- made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; and

- prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Management has provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The statement of the Company’s external auditor, DTT, regarding their
reporting responsibility is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 41 to 42 of this Annual Report.

Code Provision C.2.1 of the Revised CG Code stipulates that the
Directors should at least annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system.

The Board recognizes that it has the overall responsibility to establish and
maintain a sound and effective internal control system to ensure the
smooth running of operations, safeguard the Group’s assets and the
Shareholders’ interest as well as to ensure the reliability of financial
statements in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. In devising
internal controls, the Group has regard to the nature and extent of the
risk, the likelihood of it crystallizing, and the cost of controls. A system of
internal control is designed to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute, assurance against the risk of material misstatement, fraud or
loss.

During the year under review, the Group engaged an external firm of
qualified accountants to initiate an independent review covering the
overall financial, operational, compliance, risk management and
monitoring control aspects for a substantial part of the Group’s
operations. A report from the external firm of qualified accountants was
addressed and presented to the Board, and reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the Board. The report did not reveal any significant
defects.

The aforesaid is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing significant business, financial, compliance and operational risks
specific to the Group. Relevant recommendations made by the Audit
Committee and the external qualified accountants who performed the
reviews at least annually would be implemented, if appropriate, as soon as
possible, by the Group to further enhance its internal control policies,
procedures and practices.
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The Company Secretary, Ms. Vicki Tsui, is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the Board activities
are efficiently and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through adherence to proper Board procedures and the timely preparation
and dissemination of meeting agendas and papers to the Directors.
Minutes of all meetings of the Board and the Board committees are
prepared and maintained by the Company Secretary to record in sufficient
details the matters considered and decisions reached by the Board or the
Board Committee. All minutes are sent to the Directors and are available
for inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully
apprised of all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments relating to the Group and that it takes these into
consideration when making decisions for the Group.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for seeking to ensure
the Group’s compliance with all obligations under the Listing Rules and
The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases, including
the preparation, publication and despatch of annual reports and interim
reports within the time limits set out in the Listing Rules and the timely
dissemination of the same to the Shareholders.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings in the Group’s
securities, connected transactions and price-sensitive information and
ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the Listing Rules
are observed and, where required, reflected in the annual report of the
Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to
Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. All
members of the Board have access to the advice and service of the
Company Secretary. Ms. Vicki Tsui was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company in December 2011 and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Group’s affairs. Ms. Vicki Tsui has confirmed, following
specific enquiry made by the Company that she has complied with all the
qualifications, experience and training requirements of the Listing Rules.
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The Group actively promotes investor relations and communications with
the investment community when the interim and year end financial results
are announced and during the course of the year. The Board is committed
to providing clear and full information about the Group to the
Shareholders through the publication of notices, announcements,
circulars, interim and annual reports. An up-to-date consolidated version
of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the Company is
published on the websites of the Group and the Stock Exchange. There
have been no changes to the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws
of the Company during the year but changes to the Bye-laws will be
proposed at the 2012 annual general meeting. A circular containing details
of the proposed amendments will be sent to the Shareholders together
with the 2012 Annual Report.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
the directors of a company, notwithstanding anything in its bye-laws shall,
on the requisition of members of the company holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up
capital of the company as at the date of the deposit carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the company, forthwith proceed duly to
convene a special general meeting of the company. The requisition must
state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the company, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

All substantive resolutions at general meetings are decided on a poll which
is conducted by the Company Secretary and scrutinised by the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong. The results of the poll are published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Regularly
updated financial, business and other information about the Company is
made available on the Company’s website for the Shareholders and
stakeholders.
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The last shareholders’ meeting of the Company was the 2011 Annual AN\ FEREMIRE R E AR —F——E LA +ILH
General Meeting which was held on 19th September, 2011 at The Mira &) & #The Mira Hong Kong®f72 —&F——14F
Hong Kong, Hong Kong attended by DTT and three Directors, including I HE S K6 > 8 & = 4 ¥ FH (G IEEE & LR
the Chairman of the Board and the Nomination Committee. The 47 B € 1) WA I o & e R R 2
Directors are requested and encouraged to attend shareholders’ meetings 15 WL Wil 7 25 1 6 5% 45 & > AR\ ) BRI 5 ) 75
albeit unforeseen circumstances which might prevent the Directors from R AR & o 47 B4 T H 3 TH 2 M sk =44
attending such meetings. Separate resolutions were proposed at that — ERFZAKEIRE > WA AFR B A T ——4F L
meeting on each substantive issue and the percentage of votes cast in  H +JLH Z /A rdk i » B NSl EZr T
favour of such resolutions as disclosed in the announcement of the  4;HL#igIan T :

Company dated 19th September, 2011 are set out below:

Percentage of
Resolutions proposed at the 2011 Annual General Meeting Votes

BT AR RO R AR B Z K #RHE

1. Adoption of the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30th April, 2011 100%
and the Reports of the Directors and the Auditor thereon.
BN R FIBE = F— 4 H = B R 2 RS A5 R % o g o B B o

2. Re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company and authorization 99.99%
of the Board to fix their remuneration.
ORISR o BB G wt AT A A F AL o SR o e

3(A) Re-election of Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert as an independent non-executive Director for a fixed term of 99.99%
not more than three years.
TSR SR P e B IR AT R AR R AR = AR [ E R

3(B) Re-election of Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex as an independent non-executive Director for a fixed term 99.99%
of not more than three years.

T EARIRSE A AR IR AT H S o AR AR AR [ E IRR o

4. Authorisation to the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration. 100%
BMEHEE G EER NS

5(A)  Granting a general mandate to the Directors to issue new shares of the Company. 99.78%
T HEF—JRIHE > DI AR L w2 B ey

5(B)  Granting a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares of the Company. 100%
T HEF—JRITHE > DUR AL 5 Z e -

5(C)  Extension of the general mandate to the Directors to issue new shares following the repurchase of 99.78%

shares of the Company under the general mandate in Resolution No. 5(B).
PRI TE R 2 —BAZHE > RRIEHS S(B)H PR 2 T — A HENE [0 A R 2 R A% 3847
A
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All resolutions put to the Shareholders at the 2011 Annual General
Meeting were passed. The results of the voting by poll were published on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. The Board has
established a shareholders’ communication policy and posted it on the
websites of the Company. The Board reviews it on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. Enquiries, comments and suggestions to the Board
or the Company are welcome and can be addressed to the Company
Secretary by mail to 8/F., Hale Weal Industrial Building, 22-28 Tai Chung
Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong or by email at
ir@qplhk.com.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2012.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and sale of
integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners and investment
holding.

The results of the Group for the year ended 30th April, 2012 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 43.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of
the year ended 30th April, 2012.

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company did not have reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at 30th April, 2012.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of the contributed surplus if:

(1) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at an
aggregate cost of HK$7,289,000.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 30th April, 2012, the percentages of the Group’s
turnover and purchases attributable to its major customers and suppliers
are as follows:

Turnover attributable to: BT AL SRR
Largest customer BREF
Five largest customers HRKEF

Purchases attributable to: ST A PR A -
Largest supplier R AL e R
Five largest suppliers FHRAHERE R

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Tung Lok (Executive Chairman and Chief Executive)
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson

Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert

Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex

Pursuant to bye-law 102A of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Phen Hoi
Ping Patrick, being executive Director and Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson,
being independent non-executive Director, will retire from office at the
2012 AGM and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

As the executive Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is not, by
virtue of Bermuda law, subject to retirement by rotation. However, in
order to comply with the Code Provision A.4.2 of the Existing CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange,
which stipulates that every director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed to
voluntarily retire and be re-elected at least once every three years. At the
2012 AGM, Mr. Li Tung Lok will voluntarily retire from office and, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election as executive Director.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND o B By B B Bt 0y =2 HE A
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 30th April, 2012, the interests of the Directors of the Company and A = FE— "4EP H =+ H » AN FIHIE S5 &
their associates in the share capital and underlying shares attached to  EA6 ([ 355 K W B 60 1) 55 3524658 3. 2 B Rl 44
share options of the Company or any of its associated corporations as  HiT# > SARYE 17 R QI T i 2 A < I ZE 55 4700
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section & 4/ &) Ik 38 r 2 A\ 6] O 84T IRARHE RS » A/
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or as otherwise & 5% [ i 45 2 B 82 \ -8 A4 6] 5 = AT a] A
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model ¥ 3] 7 JBEAS K B A FT B A B 40 2 REZS TN
Code of the Listing Rules of the issued share capital of the Company

were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING A2 v JBe By Ko A B B Ay 2 35 A%
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Number of issued ordinary sharesfunderlying shares of the Company

AW CBAT R BB B B H

Percentage of

the issued

Personal Family Corporate share capital of

Name of Director interests interests interests Total the Company

ik Al

CETRAZ

KRS i AR KBS AhEg: it ip ;4
Mr. Li Tung Lok B

—Ordinary shares in issue — DT 273,794,282 3,000,000 18,590,944 295,385,226 38.49%

(Notea) (Noteb)
(Wfita) (Hf7tn)

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick A

— Unlisted share options — J LTI hE 3,060,000 - - 3,060,000 0.40%
Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert SRR

— Unlisted share options o AN i 510,000 - - 510,000 0.07%
Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson 2 i S

— Unlisted share options — LT B 510,000 - - 510,000 0.07%
Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex FRE

— Unlisted share options . ARl i 510,000 - - 510,000 0.07%

Notes: Kt -

(a) The family interests of 3,000,000 shares represent the interest of the wife  (a) K HE 25 2. 3,000,000 403 Ty 2= TR 44 e A 25 7 2
of Mr. Li Tung Lok. MESR

(b) Mr. Li Tung Lok wholly owns Solar Forward Company Limited, which  (b) ZE[a] 4856 2 & HEA 2 Solar Forward Company
owns 18,590,944 shares of the Company. Limited A 42 7 18,590,944 e ffy
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WA SR 4 i 5 Mo S DU R O A R A W)
Rl Wi 2w 2 ey oh > i =& — AR =+
H o AN EF TN AR E 2B AL
A7 A 2 ) AT ] A ] (38 S RB 05 S )
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the B M6A5]) 22 AT Aa] 7% 2 B A7 AE 10 A B A AT A 47 45 B
SFO. RAT -

Save as disclosed herein and for shares in subsidiaries held by the
Directors in trust for their immediate holding companies, at 30th April,
2012, none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company, nor their
associates, had any interest or short position in any securities or derivatives

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in Note 31

Bl I it
AR AP HE G BRI WO A 5 S IR RT3 -

to the consolidated financial statements.

TR AR B TR A R IR A R

ST

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options
granted to the Directors and employees during the year:

Outstanding

Movements during the year at 30th April,
Exercised Forfeited 012
e S
WA=1H
WALl i

Outstanding

at Ist May,

Date of grant 211 Granted
[
A0 RS

WAATHE 54 i cHk

Exercise Period

AR

Category 1: Directors

FKEE

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick ~ 11th May, 2007 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 18th May, 2007 - 10th May, 2012

Aasis “RELERAt-R “ERELERATARE -
11th May, 2007 600,000 - - - 600,000 18th May, 2008 - 10th May, 2012
“RRAFLA-R “EENERATARESS 2R A
3rd December, 2009 840,000 - - - 840,000 10th December, 2009 - 2nd December, 2014
“REMETZRZR “EENFFORTHECE - A
3td December, 2009 420,000 - - - 420000 3rd December, 2010~ 2nd December, 2014
“RENMETZAZR CE-REFOAEHECE-IE A A

Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert 11th May, 2007 200,000 - - - 200000 14th May, 2007 - 10th May, 2012

FRMEE e S SN h “ERAERATUAE - E-CEHRTH
11th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100000 14th May, 2008 - 10th May, 2012
“RELERA-H “EENFRATINHE - Z-ZHHATH
3rd December, 2009 140,000 - - - 140,000 8th December, 2009 - 2nd December, 2014
“EENETZAZN ZEENFFZAARECE - ZAZH
3td December, 2009 70,000 - - - 70000 3rd December, 2010 - 2nd December, 2014
“EENELCHER e S S I S e S 125 |

M. Robert Charles Nicholson 11th May, 2007 200,000 - - - 200,000 14th May, 2007 - 10th May, 2012

Rkt “RFAERAL-H “ERAFLATIHE - Z-CERATH
11th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100,000 14th May, 2008 - 10th May, 2012
“RRAFIAT-R CRENERAHNAECE-ZERA A
3td December, 2009 140,000 - - - 140,000 10th December, 2009 - 2nd December, 2014
“REMETZRZR CEENFFCRATHECE - A
3td December, 2009 70,000 - - - 70000 3rd December, 2010 - 2nd December, 2014
“RENMETZAZR CE-REFCAEHECE-IET A CH
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Outstanding Outstanding
at 1st May, Movements during the year at 30th April,
Date of grant 211 Granted Exercised Forfeited 212 Exercise Period
A%k e
A0 EREH WA=TH
gl M WAL i WALl Gl
Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex  11th May, 2007 200,000 - - - 200,000 18th May, 2007 10th May, 2012
ThHESE “RRLFL-H CEFLERATARECE-ZEAATA
11th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100000 18th May, 2008 - 10th May, 2012
“RRLERAT-H SRRNERATARECE-ZERATH
3rd December, 2009 140,000 - - - 140,000 7th December, 2009 - 2nd December, 2014
“REMEFCAZR CRENEFCAERECE-WETCAZH
3td December, 2009 70,000 - - - 70000 3rd December, 2010 - 2nd December, 2014
“EENEF =N CE-FETCHZHECZ-WETCRCH
Total Directors 4,590,000 - - - 4,590,000
EELE
Category 2
5
Eligible employees 11th May, 2007 8,950,000 - - (700,000) §250,000  14th May, 2007~ 10th May, 2012
HEtkES “RREFLA-R CEELERAHIHE S-SR
11th May, 2007 4475000 - - (350,000) 4125000 14th May, 2008 - 10th May, 2012
“RELFIAT-H CEFNFRATNAE SRR TH
3rd December, 2009 10,185,500 - - (2456.834) 7728666 3rd December, 2009 - 2nd December, 2014
“ERAELCAZR CEENFFASAECE-WERZAZA
3rd December, 2009 5,102,750 - - (1,228 416) 3874334 3rd December, 2010 - 2nd December, 2014
“REMETZRZR “RREFTAERR R -METZAZH
Total employees 28,713,250 - - (4,735,250) 23,978,000
fRE
Total all categories 33,303,250 - - (4,735.250) 28,568,000
ARt
No options were granted or exercised during the year. A A W 0 B T MR AP HH B AT
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Other than the share option scheme as described in the sections headed
“Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share
Options”, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or chief executives, nor their spouses or children under the age
of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

No Director was a party to a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without the payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

At 30th April, 2012, other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
a Director, the Company has not been notified of any other interest
representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company and
recorded in the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO.

38-39
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During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The fees of the Directors and emolument of senior management are
determined with reference to their respective duties and responsibilities,
expertise and experience in the industry, the performance and profitability
of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from other companies
and prevailing market conditions. Whilst the Board retains its power to
determine the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the responsibility
for reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management of the Company is delegated
to the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in Note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws or under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s
shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares throughout the year ended 30th April, 2012.
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A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of the  JAZS/ &) IR B AE & b i1 2R GRS « BF
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of &l 5 & 5t flidT A A A FIAZ IR 2 ik o
the Company.

On behalf of the Board CRERE

Li Tung Lok EN

Chairman 2| 4

26th July, 2012 —E - EA-+/NH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

JoS A% B e 7

Deloitte.
= 2]

TO THE MEMBERS OF QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of QPL
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 102, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30th April,
2012, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

#QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(B BT HEERE M7 2 AR 2 Al
Bz JBe 3K

RETE BRI H432 102 H 2 QPL International
Holdings Limited ([ #5237 1) K& FF &2 7 (SiFH
[EEM ) ZHEAMBRE > IWEMERECATR
TR -TAENA =+ 0 2 S MBI E R E
P H IEFE 2 AR IARE - AR BT %
LEr A B AR R > DU e R A A A
B B o

HA R ERHATRE R G S A g il 2 &
SR v 1) 2 A ) A 9] 2 A e L i S
B BB s & B ok RIS R R
i BB PA RS R P AL B 2 BB - DA AR5 B
B AR AT AE P ST B o T A 2 A
ﬂ o

AT 2 FAERARIEAST 2 B2 S5 A B ek
PR o AT RIZIMAFVELN FERIOMHE
T 1) RS B PR RO S AR AT 2 R o BRI Z A - AT
ZHOEEA AL o ATHMAMAREE 2
WA - BEHAET A LB TEURIE AL - AR
AT G B 2 A R AET T -
2% M BORAA TSP AE FERLRE AR B AT
¥ > DL BILAEGE M55 555 AR IR R B A AR ]
BOR B AR BRAL -
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30th April, 2012, and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26th July, 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aok 2 T A R

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2012 # % —%

— TAEP A=A HORAEE

2012 2011
e =
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Mzt T#L T
Turnover o <1 7 279,131 353,998
Other income FoAd A 8 11,956 14,711
Exchange loss, net [TFE b s 8V A (2,090) (4,200)
Changes in inventories of finished goods KB S R 2
and work in progress 152 H) (5,489) 4,593
Raw materials and consumables used 6 PR R ADRE BOH AR (135,246) (199.880)
Staff costs AT R (67,656) (74,134)
Depreciation of property, plant and W~ W Rt 2 s
equipment 14 (12,516 (10,962)
Reversal of (recognition of) impairment ] (RRERR) B — K T Jag 2 )
losses on balances with a former g 2 WA ES IR
subsidiary 16 1,999 (2,342)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A LS BB 2 W B TR
investment (1,025) -
Other expenses oA B S (73,850) (93,123)
Interest on bank and other loans wholly ZEA TLAT R A U R 2 4R AT I
repayable within five years HoAth B3k 2 LS (711) (786)
Loss before taxation FRBLHT 1R (5,497) (12,125)
Taxation BiIH 9 (990) (1,028)
Loss for the year ARAE 1R 10 (6,487) (13,153)
Other comprehensive income (expense): oAb A (B %) -
Exchange differences arising on MR A T S S5
translation 24 2
Net loss on fair value changes of A LSS B B AT A E)
available-for-sale investment A 2 Rt R (940) (1,794)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale FEAE R G 1R 2 T LB &
investment recycled to loss for the year & 2 W kR 1,025 -
Other comprehensive income (expense) AR HoAth A T A (B 32)
for the year 109 (1,792)
Total comprehensive expense for the year — AS4F & 4 i B &7 4448 (6,378) (14,945)
HK$ HK$
L 5T
Loss per share B 1E 12
Basic and diluted A T (0.01) (0.02)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A o A IR DL HR

At 30th April, 2012 i ~ZF— 40 =+H

2012 2011
R T4 R4
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt T-HTT
Non-current assets IE T
Property, plant and equipment L E QR T INEL ] 14 54,794 60,066
Available-for-sale investment CIRER R g <y 15 2,051 -
Other receivable HoAth MENSRIE 16 - 994
Advance payment for property, plant and ~ SEHI2E - #E 8 K aRAH 2
equipment A 4,638 838
61,483 61,898
Current assets T
Inventories & 17 28,301 46,121
Trade and other receivables B 5 T oA U R IE 18 53,988 65,722
Deposits and prepayments P4 T FEAT A 3,132 4,339
Available-for-sale investment CIRER R g <y 15 - 2,991
Bank balances and cash SRAT & B S B4 19 13,878 8,952
99,299 128,125
Current liabilities ) A fE
Trade and other payables B 5y K HAEAT R IH 20 30,381 44,036
Trust receipt loans and bills payable 15 sE WO R S A 22 45 21 10,719 13,358
Deposits and accrued expenses i T e 2 20 21,377 22,341
Taxation payable JRESRIH 734 741
Borrowings & 22 14,185 18,325
Obligations under finance leases R 4RI 23 452 1,375
77,848 100,176
Net current assets BB R 21,451 27,949
82,934 89,847
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FR AT B OLHR

At 30th April, 2012 j* —ZF— "4 =+H

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
iz T-#IL Tt
Capital and reserves AR R St
Share capital e 24 61,390 61,390
Share premium and reserves JBe A7V 15 2 fts 18,587 24,965
Equity attributable to owners of the EN/NEIE ZEDN A
Company RE 4 79,977 86,355
Non-current liabilities TR AR
Accrued rental expenses R 4 B S 2,902 3,229
Obligations under finance leases Tl AR AR 23 54 262
Deferred taxation R AERTH 25 1 1
2,957 3,492
82,934 89,847

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 102 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th July, 2012 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Li Tung Lok
7] 4
Director

HE

R A3 EI02H 24 AR LB E RO =%
— B H TN B HEIG IR RET S > M A EE
FARERGHRE

Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
Bifr
Director

HE

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 4E#k



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e A B AR

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2012 # % — % — —4EPY H =+ H [F4E 5

Capital  Investment Share
Share Share  Contributed  redemption  revaluation options  Translation ~Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
YRR YRR WG
Bk bR AR it it Wl B RhEH it

HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS000
T T T T T T T T T
(Notel) (Note2)
Wit1) (i)

At Ist May, 2010 REF-FETA A 61,39 147812 40475 12310 2,051 5,55 4 (168,984) 100,550
Loss for the year REEEEH - - - - - - - 13153 (1315
Other comprehensive (expense) AZEFE it 41
income for the year (B30 A - - - - (1,794) - 2 - (1,792)
Total comprehensive (expense) 7K 46 (%)
income for the year A - - - - (1,794) - 2 (13,153)  (14945)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ FABLAS B R
share-based payment RT3 - - - - - 750 - - 750
Forfeiture of share options V7B 1E - - - - - (288) - 288 -
At30th Apri, 2011 RoF——F
JA=1H 61,39 147812 40475 12310 257 517 13 (181,849) 86,355
Loss for the year KRR - - - = = = = (6487) (6,487)
Other comprehensive income /K4 Fif
for the year AHA - - - - 8 - U - 109
Total comprehensive income A4 2TUTA
(expense) for the year (%) - - - - 85 = U (6487) (6378)
Forfeiture of share options i A HE - - - - - (969) - 969 -
At30th April, 2012 REF—ZA
JA=1H 61,390 147812 40475 12310 K1) 4,748 267 (187,367) 9977
Notes: Mt
1. Contributed surplus represents the excess of the net assets of subsidiaries 1. LA BRFE T ST O o 2 ) 7 VA L A 2 )
acquired over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued as FTEEAT I T (B S AR 2 223 o
consideration.
2. Capital redemption reserve represents the excess of the consideration paid 2. A [ b 41 B D] A 2 ) 0 2 s Jr Ao AR
for repurchase of the Company’s ordinary shares over the par value of B2 R A THT (B2 22 o

respective repurchased shares.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
e Blaiig

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2012 # % — % — —4EPY H =+ H [F4E

2012 2011
I S
HK$’000 HK$’000
T-#IL T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REBH
Loss before taxation BRI R (5,497) (12,125)
Adjustments for: A
Interest income FLE A ) (6)
Interest on bank and other loans wholly repayable  ZE[jit . 4F A 4 S fE 75 2 4847 M
within five years HAth 83k 2 FLE 711 786
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WISE - MR Rl 2 I 12,516 10,962
(Reversal of) recognition of impairment losses on  (#§[A]) T 52 BL— 57 Fif b & 2\ 7
balances with a former subsidiary AR IR TR (1,999) 2,342
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment A S BUE B TR 1,025 -
Equity-settled share-based payment expense R A G AR A0y o SE 8 2
A5F K BH 52 = 750
(Reversal of) write down of inventories (1)) Wi A £ (1,054) 458
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts, net SIS IE R R 267 11
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and IEWEE - WG
equipment M8 () 33 (20)
Imputed interest income on non-current interest-  JE By G B H AL MEY HIA 2
free other receivable RS FE A (632) (713)
Operating cash inflows before movements in w2 A
working capital BAamA 5,364 2,445
Decrease (increase) in inventories WD (B8 n) 18,874 (13,891)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5y I oAb NI b 15,094 9,273
Decrease in deposits and prepayments e R FEAT IR D 1,207 3,765
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables & o T FA EAST ZKOE (b)) 36 (13,994) 7,358
Increase in bills payable JRE A SRS 706 1,133
Decrease in deposits and accrued expenses e R mER T b (1,265) (12,995)
Cash generated from (used in) operations TS (T FE) B4 25,986 (2,912)
Income tax paid CAS AT 1RBE 997) (1,024)
Interest paid EATFLE (714) (783)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BB (Brke)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BLeHH 24,275 (4,719)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BAEBEREE

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2012 # % ~ % — " 4EUH =+ H [R4E 5

2012 2011
TR —TAE R4
HK$°000 HKS$°000
T Tl
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BB
Interest received EFLE 6 6
Purchase of property, plant and equipment TEE WS ~ Heas Mkt (6,950) (16,129)
Advance payment for property, plant and R - HES KR 2 B
equipment (3,800) (838)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and Y - BRAE GRS
equipment iRES el 11 20
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES $:% %% 0kt Bl 4 5 % (10,733) (16,941)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 35 )
New bank loans raised Hr AT R 16,322 5,837
Repayment of bank borrowings IR ERAT (20,462) (2,164)
Repayment of obligation of finance leases B TR Rl AR 2R A (1,131) (1,034)
New trust receipt loans raised i E R R E kK 61,036 50,129
Repayment of trust receipt loans R AE IR AR (64,381) (40,676)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING B 36 B (T e ) i s
ACTIVITIES B4 Ei (8,616) 12,092
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASHAND 84 R4 WBl4XH
CASH EQUIVALENTS Bim (WA ) 38 4,926 (9,568)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT AERIZBA B
BEGINNING OF YEAR B4mEH 8,952 18,520
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF 4E#&2 Bl 4 K %W
YEAR B&IEH
Representing bank balances and cash RERATAE B M B4 13,878 8,952
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2012 #% — & — " 4EU H =+ H [R5

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKS$”) that is different from the functional
currency of the Company which is United States dollars (“USD”)
as the directors of the Company control and monitor the
performance and financial position of the Company by using
HKS.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are the manufacture and sale of integrated
circuit leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners and investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 33.

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
HKAS 24 Related party disclosures
(as revised in 2009)
HK(IFRIC)—INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum
(Amendments) funding requirement

HK(IFRIC) - INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities

with equity instruments

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material effect on the amounts reported or
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o o B 25 A Fi

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2012 # % ~ % — " 4EUH =+ H [R4E 5

50-51

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
HKFRS9

HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRS 13
HK(IFRIC)-INT 20

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income?
Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets?
Employee benefits*

Separate financial statements*

Investments in associates and
joint ventures*

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities’

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 cycle*

Government loan*

Disclosures — Transfers of
financial assets!
Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities*
Financial instruments$
Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and
transition disclosures®

Consolidated financial statements*

Joint arrangements*

Disclosure of interests in
other entities*

Consolidation financial statements,
joint arrangements and disclosure
of interests in other entities:
transition guidance*

Fair value measurement*
Stripping costs in the production phase
of a surface mine*

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2012.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2012.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2013.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2014.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2015.
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HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities relates to the
presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial liability
(designated as at fair value through profit or loss) attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be
adopted by the Group for the annual period beginning on 1st
May, 2015. Except for the Group’s available-for-sale investment,
the adoption of HKFRS 9 has no other impact on amounts
reported in respect of the classification and measurement of the
Group’s other financial assets and financial liabilities as at 30th
April, 2012. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect on
the Group’s available-for-sale investment until a detailed review
has been completed.
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HKFRS 13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad and it applies to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which
other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified
circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
13 are more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the
three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments:
Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets
and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after st
January, 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be
adopted by the Group for the annual period beginning on 1Ist
May, 2013 and that the application of the new standard may result
in more extensive disclosures about fair value measurements in the
consolidated financial statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 PRESENTATION OF
ITEMS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in either a single statement
or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section such that items
of other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group for
annual period beginning on 1st May, 2013. The presentation of
items of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly
when the amendments are applied in the future accounting
periods.
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AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 PRESENTATION OF
ITEMS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(continued)

Other than as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and position and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements included applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for available-for-sale investment, that is
measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special purpose
entities) controlled by the Company or its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

- the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However,
when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over
the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKS$)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of the translation reserve.

BORROWINGS COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including state-managed retirement benefit schemes, the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and the defined contribution
provident fund regulated under the Occupational retirement
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

TAXATION
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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TAXATION (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price for inventories, in the
ordinary course of business, less all estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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60-01

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy in
respect of impairment of financial assets below).

Abvailable-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables or held-
to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period in which the impairment takes place.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, trust
receipt loans and bills payable, accrued expenses and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share option granted to the directors and employees of the
group, the fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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ZAEMH = A H IR

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the
next financial year.

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Determining whether items of property, plant and equipment are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
property, plant and equipment, which is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use of the cash-generating units to
which items of property, plant and equipment have been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
If the actual future cash flows are less than expected, further
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment may arise. At
30th April, 2012, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is HK$54,794,000 (2011: HK$60,066,000). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 14.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to equity holders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 22, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the issued share
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends as well as obtaining finance
from banks, if necessary.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets ERVE R

Loans and receivables
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HK$’000 HK$°000
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(including cash and cash equivalents) SR BEEE) 68,680 76,927
Available-for-sale financial asset AL 4 il 2,051 2,991
Financial liabilities EACURER
Amortised cost S A 79,564 101,289

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND Y45 g 45 B H B B UK

POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investment, trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, trust receipt loans and bills payable,
accrued expenses, borrowings and obligations under finance
leases. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner. There has been no significant change
to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and its
monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of respective
group entities, which are mainly HK$ or USD. However,
the Group has purchases and expenses transactions which
are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s major foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the reporting date are as follows:
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In addition, as at 30th April, 2012, the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk is also arising from inter-company
balances due to foreign operations of approximately
HK$774,000 (2011: HK$1,272,000), which were not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant
group entities. These inter-company balances do not form
part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(it)

Currency risk (continued)

Currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s major sensitivity
analysis of a 5% increase and decrease in HK$ or USD
against RMB. 5% represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and the aforesaid
inter-company balances and adjusts their translation at the
year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates a decrease in loss where
the HKS or USD strengthen 5% against the relevant
foreign currency. For a 5% weakening of the HK$ or USD
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the loss, and the amounts
below would be negative.

Loss for the year A 4R
RMB NG

LB T H (@)
Y95 I B 4 B B B B0 (%)

i 853 R ()

)

B R ()

B RUREZ b

AR E AR S A T B e T A
B W S | T B B 5% R T A T %2
BURIE I T o 5% 1 5 B S A1 W5 e
ARG BR]REAE L BT VR AT AL o MUK
JBE 53 M LA DL A B 5y B0 2 R AE
EENIEE DL B R A
Nz A4 s REE 2% 14 5005 B 3 7% S5 JH H
TR EEAT R R E g R o TR
Z IE B R s U 3R T S AR B S
THE S0l 2 i R  #nE Xt
SEH B AN B (B 5%y > HCE R 1R
FEBMBEMRZ R M TFRZHK
TEIR 2 BB o

2012 2011
SRR

—E
HKS$°000
Tt

HK$000
T#x

1,412 1,663

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to its obligations under finance leases. The
management will consider hedging significant fair value
interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on interest-bearing financial assets and financial
liabilities, which are mainly balance with banks which are
short term in nature, and trust receipt loans and
borrowings which carry interests at the Hong Kong prime
rate, plus a margin. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

(i)

F# b

A 4R ) ZEL A Pl AL 4 R TR N
(B SRR o 45 3 6 A e B2 IR
75 8 3 b R R PR A R L o

A A B R B A A R
AR T T 3 M) R Y AR AfE B
A AR B o T B AR AT A
B > Bt 7 s do B R 5 5 o 2
RS FACHTIE: 3¢ O & e S
B 2 O Ty PR AR LA B M) A A
BEZ AR o O P A 2 J g ol 2
A o

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 4E#k



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Foi o B 255 A Fi

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2012 # & —Z&—

68-69

ZAEMH = A H IR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(it)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to variable interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For
variable-rate interest bearing financial assets and
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of asset and liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 10
or 100 basis point represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in variable interest rate
bearing financial assets and liabilities respectively.

The impact of changes of interest rate for financial assets
would have no material impact on the profit or loss for
both years.

If interest rates of financial liabilities had been 100 basis
point higher/lower and all other variable were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 30th April,
2012 would increase/decrease by HK$125,000 (2011:
increase/decrease by HK$200,000).

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk in relation to its
available-for-sale investment which is measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The management
manages this exposure by reviewing this investment
regularly.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that the change in prices had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to price risk for the Group’s available-for-sale
investment at that date.

A 25% (2011: 10%) change in equity prices represents the
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
changes in prices. The sensitivity rate is increased from
10% to 25% in current year as a result of the volatile
financial market.

Y5 e e A P B B SR (450)

i B LB (%57

(i)

(i)

7 JE B ()

TR E A>T

DU SO i T AR B A AR TR
T 5 1A [ 465 oI 2 77 ) ) R i e
TE o AR TR BRI R R 2 A R
FAEBET 5 > A0 TR S ik 1)
I &5 RN 2 R i s e e BB A %A
BT AR AE IR T AR B o 102K 10018
BB B o A R R B R R G
B2 G RE B A &2 A B fE s
B TIEREAS o

o Bl M) 5 ) S o S i A 4R
JRE 2 3 ) e A 8 R 2

Bk 4 il B AR B FF R k1001
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Equity price risk (continued)
Equity price sensitivity analysis (continued)
As at 30th April, 2012, if the price of the respective
instrument had been 25% higher and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s investment revaluation
reserve would increase by HK$513,000 as a result of the
changes in fair value of available-for-sale investment. If
the price of the respective instrument had been 25% lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
investment revaluation reserve would decrease by
HK$342,000 and the Group’s loss for the year would
increase by HK$171,000 as a result of the changes in fair
value of available-for-sale investment and the relevant
impairment loss thereon.

As at 30th April, 2011, if the price of the respective
instrument had been 10% higher/lower and all other
variable were held constant, the Group’s investment
revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
HK$299.,000 as a result of the changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investment.

The Group’s exposure to equity price risk from the
available-for-sale investment has not changed significantly
from the prior year.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 30th April,
2012 and 2011 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying value of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables as set out in Note 18. The amounts of trade receivables
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position are
net of allowances for doubtful receivables. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group is responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures are carried out to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade and other
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

S5 I g A B H B B BORE ()

i 5 R BgE (7))

(i) RAEE B (A
AR S SO AT (48
E\ggégfﬁﬂlﬂ 5+ H > ﬂg PXM
QIEZﬁ%Lﬂ%%7H%ﬁE

5 B R R > RIASEE 2 &

HEAG AR TR EREZA
- {H 5 ) It 18 0 513,000 #5008
B A TH LB 2 B A% T gk25% » AL
A HoAth s B R A 5 > ARSI 2 )
A ot B A A s 1R A R it
B 8 N {5 B A S D
342,000 %5 7T SIS N 171,000%5 76
DK A B (A R 1 -

AR AENA =+ H - B
HTHEZE® LT/ FEk10% > 2
Fr A H A S AR OR > R AR
2B AL A R T B
Z NP SR B I 8 0,98 299,000
W -

24 3 R T 58 6 2 T 2
AR B B — 6 A M 20
gL -
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Ik > 7S 42 [ 45 3L g 5 T PR A -
115 B B B At 2 38 7t > DA AR
R R 4 ot [ 2 0 A A5 (5 0 o b4
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The board of directors has delegated the management to be
responsible for the assessment of the financial position of
individual debtors and for determination of monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The management will remind debtors of the
amount of outstanding receivables and the dates of settlement to
advise them to settle receivables promptly.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk on its trade
receivables. As at 30th April, 2012, 23% (2011: 14%) of trade
receivables is due from the Group’s largest customer and 24%
(2011: 30%) of trade receivables is due from the other four largest
customers of the Group.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, and to
arrange additional banking facilities, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank loans and obligations under finance leases with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is based on interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Y5 e e A P B B SR (450)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. %ﬁ[l‘. IZE(;-?;-,;‘;;»
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND o5 B 4 B B B BUSR (4
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) s 4w B (%)
Liquidity and interest rate tables B & o R % 2

Weighted Total
average Repayable on Less than 1to Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1 year 2 years 2years  cashflows amount

T AR RMHBLE

THAR  ZOREFE VR 1224 24Nk HEAE Y i

%  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
% T T T THT T T

2012 e S
Trade and other payables & 53 S H A AT 20H = 4454 25927 = = 30,381 30,381
Trust receipt loans fa R AR
—variable rate -7 8 37 - 8,923 - - 8,923 8,880
Bills payable JE TR - - 1,839 - - 1,839 1,839
Accrued expenses JEEHE A - - 213717 m 2575 24,279 24,279
Borrowings - variable rate & — 1% 11 3,646 = = = 3,646 3,646
Borrowings from a director ~ — £ EH & - 10,539 - - - 10,539 10,539
Obligation under finance lease i & fH %) /&4 36 U5 219 55 - 519 506
18,884 58,285 38 2575 80,126 80,070
2011 SR
Trade and other payables &5 B Ab e R - 8,827 35,209 - - 44,036 44,036
Trust receipt loans (ERAlE 50
— variable rate —%8 37 - 12,286 - - 12,286 12,225
Bills payable JE AT EAR - - 1,133 - - 1,133 1,133
Accrued expenses JE=HE A - - 22,341 327 2,902 25,570 25,570
Borrowings - variablerate {5 & — 8 53 7,786 - - - 7,786 7,786
Borrowings from a director ~ — & EH & - 10,539 - - - 10,539 10,539
Obligation under finance lease il & f 41 & {2 36 964 45 219 55 1,683 1,637
28,116 71414 546 2,957 103,033 102,926
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest rate tables (continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
loans and obligations with a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreement.
The amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the
amounts disclosed in the “repayable on demand” time band in the
maturity analysis above. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company
believe that borrowings and obligations under finance leases will
be repaid after the reporting date in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan and lease agreements as
follows:

ﬁ?ﬁ{[‘\ I:H~ ( :Z;:‘f,‘"{ )
Yo 4 bl e 4 B B B BOORE (4)

LB B (4

BB R F 7 (4)

T AR MR ARAR B W el BT i A T T
B BT > B8 T IR R B AR i 4R
TR BORPERIN T - A B MR A6 %
BRI RFHE Z A E AR o L > LA
A A B S0 A T TR B SR B R
N B 2 WA o 5 B AR SR I 2 B IR
W ARFERGR R > BATA AT REAT (K
B HE R B 3K o A R EE AR
i B Tl L A0 R 1 AR A R R R AL
A T E MR HO > e H AR
o FEEIT

Weighted Total
average Less than 1to Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 2 years cash flows amount
i AMBBE
FHHE VW 1524 YERL  RER M
% HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
2012 v S 3
Borrowings - variable BE-FE 1.1 3,648 = = 3,648 3,646
Obligation under finance lease R AR 36 246 - - 246 U5
3,34 - - 3,84 3801
2011 “F ek
Borrowings - variable EE-7E 37 7858 - - 7858 7,786
Obligation under finance lease VR 36 739 246 - 085 964
8,597 246 - 8,843 8,750
Fair value AP

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

. the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;
and

. the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

EREERERMAR A EEENT

. LA AR R A P 10 7% 455 8 9L 38 i
LGHEZEMEELZATHEIZE
i R E - K

. HoAth & & A M B AR 2 AFE
T DAY B R 4 B o A Ay e 2 —



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Foi o B 285 A P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2012 # % — % — " 4EUH =+ H [L4E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value (continued)

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost approximate their respective fair values
due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial
position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

At 30th April, 2012, available-for-sale investment of
HKS$2,051,000 (2011: HK$2,991,000) is grouped into Level 1.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold by the Group to outside customers less sales returns and
discounts.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”), for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on the location of customers.

The customers of the Group are currently located in the United
States of America (the “USA”), Hong Kong, Europe, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), Philippines, Malaysia, Singapore
and other Asian countries (which represented aggregation of
other non-reportable operating segments under HKFRS 8).

Yo 5 o e 4 L H B B SR ()

BT (47)

R G AR 9] e 2 < T < B IR
] (B B A B 2 EARA - TR A
A5 A L A L I ] P 48

RNV R ES TR i

TR MR LA E R B e
TR Hig BN T EZREE D 5
—E =M

. S8 O PEF R IR R A
o o B A T T 2 A (R A
) PRt -

. B APE R AR BT A E R
(B A ) sl T4 (BRI AE AR w1 D)
3 R R AT BB S LA A 1
N 2 i A R P R A
H#E o

. BB AR R AR I IR AR R AT
BTGB 2 B AR A
R ORI A SR Pt 515
HHE o

RoF—TAENA = H > A ERE
2,051,000 78 (= F——4F 12,991,000 7C)
AR -

BXu
BREBIEAEH MR EFHERLZD
S e B WA TR T 5 B 5 2 (] B 3

vigidigis

A A3 5 A B B A BT
#R (A F R PR ([ BB IR
H VA Z Bk TH ek DL A D
i o
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL 7.
INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

BEBERBER 40
R (4

Segment revenues and results Vs U PN E S
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by DL o A 45 8] 45 W] 2540 B 2 4 2 %A I
reportable segment: B HT
Turnover Segment results
BREB Vigi £ 3
2012 2012 2011
- S SRTUE T
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#T THTT T#x T
The USA ES 41,961 43,005 1,522 353
Hong Kong s 15,375 8,764 636 179
Europe e 2,823 4,028 137 114
The PRC o 127,196 135,424 4,310 1,594
Philippines JEHEE 19,558 21,824 962 575
Malaysia R AR 12,399 37,761 610 1,067
Singapore N 23,550 23,853 1,159 673
Reportable segment total AT A AR 242,862 274,659 9,336 4,555
Other Asian countries FoAh E K 42,054 82,808 2,069 2,219
284,916 357,467 11,405 6,774
Eliminations o (5,785) (3.469) - -
Group’s turnover and AR A R 2E R
segment results Sl A 279,131 353,998 11,405 6,774
Depreciation of property, W - B R
plant and equipment Rtz I (12,516) (10,962)
Reversal of (recognition of) ) (FlERR) Bl — %
impairment losses on balances  {ij [} J&§ > Rl 4585 2
with a former subsidiary IEE R 1,999 (2,342)
Impairment loss on available- AR E 2
for-sale investment IERIEN 55| (1,025) -
(Loss) gain on disposal of HEWE -
property, plant and e B A
equipment Z (E18) Ui ts (33) 20
Imputed interest income on I i B S B I A
non-current interest-free JEMCRIE 2
other receivable S A S A 632 713
Unallocated interest income ForBLFLE YA 6 6
Unallocated corporate KAy iAo 2
management expenses (CEiliiba (5,254) (5.548)
Interest on bank and JHR AN R BEE
other loans wholly SRAT M HAL B2
repayable within five years F &, (711) (786)
Loss before taxation o 5 i s 12 (5,497) (12,125)
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

Included in the USA and the PRC reportable segments are
revenue from inter-segments of HK$5,287,000 (2011:
HK$3,308,000) and HK$498,000 (2011: HK$161,000)
respectively.

The accounting policies of the operating segment are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit from each segment without allocation
of directors’ remuneration, corporate management expenses,
depreciation, reversal of (recognition of) impairment losses on
balances with a former subsidiary, impairment loss on available-
for-sale investment, (loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, imputed interest income on non-current interest-free
other receivable, interest income on bank deposits and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.

Intersegment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Segment assets
The follows is an analysis of the Group’s assets by reportable
segment:

BRBB S WE R (90

SR ()

Vg LN ES 6

B0 R v [ ] ik 3R B 40 R T W A A
Al 55,287,000 70 ( —F——4F : 3,308,000
W) 1 498,00035 7T (—ZF——4F : 161,000
L) ©

He oy i 2w BUR SRS B RE 3 4R 4l 2 A
A5 g ST BORARIE o 23 Wi A 95 A 3 45 2>
H 2z 3 A o TSI A ) S A S
PRBASC ~ P - fBR 1] (ReRR) B — 5K M I
NCIE AT T LIRS TRk g
R E - B - B X 2 OB1R)
Wi~ I B S S At B UCGR IE 2 A A
S~ SRATAE R FLB A B R il
A o M2 AL UR O3 IE B AR B R A 1) A
BORHE R FHRLE o

3 H T 1 4 4 B IR 2 T A RO o
Vigi ¢

AR 5 7 S W 0 O 153 6 2
Gy -

Segment assets Vig:/3=v::

2012 2011
e St ZE 4
HKS$000 HK$°000
TH#0 FHso0
The USA * 6,943 5,395
Hong Kong s 2,003 642
Europe TR 323 1,238
The PRC i 27,257 25,970
Philippines JEEE 2,879 3,064
Malaysia Sy ik 4,138 5,787
Singapore BN 4,756 3,681
Reportable segment total GRS i i 48,299 45777
Other Asian countries HoAth 55 B R 5,322 17,465
53,621 63,242

Unallocated RO HL
Property, plant and equipment W - AR L 54,794 60,066
Inventories nE 28,301 46,121
Bank balances and cash SRATHE R B 4 13,878 8,952
Other unallocated assets HAb R Bl & 10,188 11,642
Consolidated total assets ARG E A 160,782 190,023
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated to
operating segments other than property, plant and equipment,
advance payment for property, plant and equipment, inventories,
deposits and prepayments, available-for-sale investment and bank
balances and cash. No segment information on liabilities is
presented as such information is not regularly reported to the
CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION REGULARLY
PROVIDED TO THE CODM BUT NOT INCLUDED
IN THE MEASUREMENT OF SEGMENT RESULT

BRI W E R ()

oy W OB (40

oy W R (450)

AL 5 00 I AR B R 20 T TR 4 B R T
oA BREG N ELEN - AR
TR - B Al - W3 - AR RS
ZRGR A S RIEATRIA - ATt
BRCE UL RAT A B L - R A ED
HS NI I S A R S % AR BT AZ 1)
ERAETRE Bk o Rl A 2 5 A B
R

R0 v TR PSR R ]
EHUE A G Z 0 b sy T EOR

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Yok - BRES Bt vn e

2012 2011

e Spant 3 R4

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

The USA FH 1,670 1,285
Hong Kong i 626 203
Europe el 127 125
The PRC H 5,692 4,194
Philippines JEEE 882 676
Malaysia ARG R 559 1,172
Singapore HTm 1,063 740
Reportable segment total AR AR 10,619 8,395
Other Asian countries oAt B P B K 1,897 2,567
12,516 10,962

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is allocated to
reportable segments according to the proportion of turnover
generated in respective reportable segments.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s non-current assets other than financial instruments
by geographical location of the assets amounted to
HK$59,432,000 (2011: HK$60,904,000) which are located in the
PRC.

76-77

o2 ~ MBSt is 2 TBE TI HR E A% mT
BRI 2 7 SE AR LA T 2 T i 0

Bl I PR
ARSIV E (S T REBRSN) Ty
5 BT AE M B 5) o R PR
59,432,000 7C ( —F——4F 1 60,904,000%
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL 7.
INFORMATION (continued)

BRBB S WE R (90

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS AWEEEPZEFR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing TAMREAE FEAG A AL B B B JAR10% A L2 &
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows: Flggs ik -

2012 2011

= = S

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

T#0 T-Hs0

Customer A — the PRC EFEH— 45,339 56,670

Customer B — the USA KR —3 29,996 36,271
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR PRODUCTS £e) EX APy

The Group is solely engaged in the manufacture and sale of

leadframes, including integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks and

A A B P 8 O B S AR - AR AR
SR B T ARAE ~ B B R AT 2 SEH

stiffeners.
OTHER INCOME 8. HABWA
2012 2011
G- St TR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#L TWHIT
Sales of by-products and scrap BRI i BB i 11,042 13,746
Imputed interest income on T i S B H A BRI 2
non-current interest-free other receivable HEAFB A 632 713
Gain on disposal of property, EWE - B R
plant and equipment pelipdlen - 20
Interest income on bank deposits SRATAE R Z LB 6 6
Sundry income TN 276 226
11,956 14,711
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78-79

TAXATION Biu
2012 2011
TR “E -4
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#T Tt
The charge comprises: B TE 3 A
Current tax: REHARLIE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax TR A SE TR B (990) (1,027)
Deferred tax (Note 25) PEAERLIA (B 7725) = (0]
(990) (1,028)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from Hong
Kong for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1st January, 2008
onwards.

T vt FIATBE T MR B8 7 v A8 4F A 5T IE R B
HEAEBLR16.5%5HE -

PP A% 48 T i {1 4 38 Sl 08 7% A o E 2
fili MR BV ) > I S 7 s AU S B AR
H A

MR B A SE PR B IA ([ S PT i ik )
Fe A PTG B a1 - B — BT /)\AF
—H—HE > R E A R 2B S525%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao A 2 A PR

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2012 # % —F— " 4EUH =+ H [L4E 5

9. TAXATION (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

as follows:

B (41)
A B R T S H B AR A A T WA R SR T A
B Al 1E 2 R

2012 2011
&

HK$°000 HK$000
T Tt

Loss before taxation FRBiRTE 1R (5,497) (12,125)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax A B AEBIBIRL6.5% A

rate of 16.5% Z BiIH 907 2,001
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for P NEIEEN::

tax purpose Biws R (403) (7117)
Tax effect of income not taxable for WERBLIRA Z

tax purpose HHS i 28 530 203
Tax effect of non-assessable profits ik TS 2 R i )

(non-allowable losses) of offshore (CNGEIE i

operation BB 4 435) (588)
Effect of different tax rates of T R R R R B R 2

operation in the PRC 2 (987) (1,025)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised I METBBUTS e 1 2 Bips s 2 (602) (902)
Tax charge for the year AR FERLIE S (990) (1,028)
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10. LOSS FORTHE YEAR 10. A4
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging the following AAEFBEE IR TAER -
items:

2012 2011
e St 3 TR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#L THIT
Salaries, wages and other staff benefits e~ 1E K HAD B T 65,549 70,924
Retirement benefits scheme contribution 3B K F| 71 #1 ik 3k 2,107 2,460
Equity-settled share-based payment JREAS G5 S AR o Bt
expenses AF B S - 750
Total staff costs (Note) A TR (i aE) 67,656 74,134
Depreciation of property, W~ AR G
plant and equipment Pl 12,516 10,962
Repair and maintenance expenses HEE AR FER 10,958 18,723
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ H &Y 3 - Hess kM
equipment 2 JEtE 33 -
(Reversal of) write down of inventories (1)) B A7 & (FEAE A
(included in raw materials and SRR EFE)
consumables used) (1,054) 458
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts, net 3 HEHE 4 1F (A 267 11
Auditor’s remuneration % B0l 7 T 1,144 1,345
Operating lease rentals in respect of P 2 SRS A 5
premises 9,026 9,351
Note:  Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs. BifaE - EHIG O ARG b B TR
11. DIVIDEND 1. B
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of AARFEEAERIRMNBE -F— 41
a dividend for the year ended 30th April, 2012 (2011: nil). H=THIEFEEZ E (SR ——4F ) o
12.  LOSS PER SHARE 12, )bk
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable EN/NEIE ZEDN A SRS & NE T =Dk
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: R HBEERTE

Loss for the purposes of basic and FA LRI S AR
diluted loss per share WM 1E 2 1R HK$6,487,0005c  HK$13,153,00047¢

Weighted average number of ordinary — Fil LAwt 8 A A K
shares for the purpose of calculating v 5 8 2 2% 4 fi%
basic and diluted loss per share JINREST- 25 767,373,549 767,373,549
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12. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 12. ﬁﬂ’x"hﬁ‘]ﬁ(w)
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the H A A 2 ) IR REAT e R AR R —
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as the AR R CF——AEU A = B R
exercise prices of the share options of the Company are higher SEI TR > BOET IR A R T s 4R R NI 2 R
than the average market price per share for the years ended 30th RRREATH AR T M AR AT 22 I ERE -
April, 2012 and 2011.

13. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. #FKEEAME
EMOLUMENTS
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS P4

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2011: five)
directors were as follows:

TSNS A (R~ A E
HZMEWT

Phen Robert Wong
HoiPing  Sze Tsai To Charles  Chun Bong
Li Tung Lok Patrick Robert Nicholson Alex Total
% [0 Pd ] ik BRI Yy
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T TiBT
2012 TR
Fees Foks 131 = 500 375 300 1,306
Other emoluments BT
Salaries and other benefits Wa R EMAER - 1,485 - _ _ 1,485
Retirement benefit schemes B - 74 - _ _ 74
131 1,559 500 375 300 2,865
011 Rk
Fees ik 126 - 500 375 300 1,301
Other emoluments Hipa
Salaries and other benefits bR - 1474 - - - 1,474
Retirement benefit schemes RIRR R 10 gi] - - - 83
Share-based payment AR B R 2 3k - 57 11 11 11 90
136 1,604 i 386 311 2,943

The emoluments payable to directors of the Company as approved
by the Board on the recommendation of the remuneration
committee, are having regarded to their individual duties and
responsibilities with the Company, remuneration benchmark in
the industry and prevailing market conditions.

For the year ended 30th April, 2012, Mr. Li Tung Lok waived
emoluments of HK$12,069,000 (2011: HK$15,664,000). Other
than this, there was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended 30th
April, 2012 and 2011.

JEA AR ) S 2 T < T AR 45 S AR
AR A 2 B MORET ~ AT S R
W OLAE R & B e AE 2 R AR
H g AL

R E —F— A =+H
1 4FE B #12,069,0009 70 2 B 42 (2 —
—4F 1 15,664,000 70) © BRUCLASL » A
EOE TR CEF-—FWNH=Z+THIE
AERE > NG HEFT N7 HE k5 ok ] AT ]
[ Evarer 3
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13. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEEY 13.
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals included one
(2011: one) executive director of the Company, whose emolument

is included above. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining
four (2011: four) highest paid individuals are as follows:

55 B I B 4 ()

D LV 42

A FEH A L — 4 (S
—Z)ARRFHATEDSR - H2MEC IR E
3C o R A (ZF — 4 HA) Fm
A 2 P < AR R

2012 2011
TR “E -4
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x FHso0

Basic salaries, allowances and FEARFT A~ A R HA
other benefits-in-kind BEYH 4,619 4,651

Contributions to retirement benefits R PRAEFFT 3L
schemes 97 179
Share-based payment DA BEAT B SRR 2 Ah K = 173
4,716 5,003
Their emoluments were within the following bands: W Z AT R AL -

2012 2011

—F—T4p TR

Number of Number of

employees employees

e B A% g8 A%

HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 7€ — 1,000,000% 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7€ — 1,500,000%5 7T 3 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 5C — 2,000,000% 7T = 1
4 4

In both years, no emoluments were paid or payable to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors
and employees) as an inducement to join the Company or as
compensation for loss of office.

82-83
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W3 ~ B8 Bkl
Moulds,
Furniture, toolings and
Leasehold fixtures and Motor Plant and production
improvements equipment vehicles machinery films Total
flf - %E TH- THE
IS Bt W BBARE  RENRR Yy
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
COST JEA
At Ist May, 2010 WEZ=FERH—H 72,825 153,002 3,030 568,169 291,944 1,088,970
Exchange adjustments e 5L R - 3 - - - 3
Additions NE 3,630 465 611 12,156 3,092 19,954
Disposals i - (3,285) - (18,993) 4,379) (26,657)
At 30th April, 2011 RZE——HEmA=1H 76,455 150,205 3,641 561,332 290,657 1,082,290
Exchange adjustments e 5L R - 0) - - - 0)
Additions NE 3,260 360 - 1,680 1,989 7,289
Disposal i - (34) - (114) - (148)
Written off ELfHlsH (36,111) (136,153) (890) 42877 (238,844) (416,875)
At 30th April, 2012 WoE—-ZFNA=1H 43,604 14,375 2,751 558,021 53,802 672,553
ACCUMULATED Rl &
DEPRECIATIONAND  Wiffi it
IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At Ist May, 2010 WEE-FET—H 69,465 152,207 2,070 536,504 277,652 1,037,898
Exchange adjustments TR St - 2 - - - 2
Provided for the year KRR 1,556 34 87 6,385 1,89 10962
Eliminated on disposals A - (3.285) - (18.993) 4379 (26,657)
At 30th April, 2011 RoF——EH=1H 71,021 149,287 2357 524,396 275,163 1,022,224
Exchange adjustments T ri iR - @ - - - 0
Provided for the year KRR 1,957 384 319 7488 2,368 12,516
Eliminated on disposals LA - (34 - (70) - (104)
Written off CHilss (36,111) (136,153) (890) 42877 (238,844) (416,875)
At 30th April, 2012 BoF—"HFNA=1H 36,867 13,482 1,786 526937 38,687 617,759
CARRYING VALUES M i
At30th April, 2012 RZFE-ZFNH=TH 6,737 893 965 31,084 15,115 54,794
At 30th April, 2011 RoF——HEH=+H 5434 918 1,284 36,936 15,49 60,066
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84-85

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following useful lives:

Leasehold improvements 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-8 years
Motor vehicles S years
Plant and machinery 6-12 years
Moulds, toolings and production films 6 years

The carrying value of motor vehicles includes an amount of
HK$412,000 (2011: HK$1,018,000) in respect of assets held under
finance leases.

The carrying value of plant and machinery includes an amount of
HK$1,340,000 (2011: HK$1,470,000) in respect of assets held
under finance leases.

The Group has pledged its plant and equipment with a carrying
value of HK$1,752,000 (2011: HK$2,488,000) to secure certain
finance leases granted to the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
conducted a review of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
and decided to write off the cost and accumulated depreciation of
HK$416,875,000 for those property, plant and equipment which
had been fully depreciated in previous years. In addition, the
directors of the Company considered that no impairment nor
reversal of impairment for property, plant and equipment is
required.

The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment of
the Group have been determined on the basis of value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering a one-
year period with a projection of another four years, and a discount
rate of 14.6%. Cash flows in the projection period assumed a 5.5%
growth rate in the first two years of the projection period and a
zero growth rate for the remaining two years of the projection
period.

bty - HEAE R IH E Y DL E SR A S
Hefres  Hoal HAEIT

LES 13 84F
ARARL ~ B R 54 —84F
RH 54
o T ket 64F — 124F
T~ THRAERER 64F

IR MR T 1 (E 45 412,000 0 (& ——
£ 1 1,018,0007 7T) A BEAR % @l & FL 4 BT I
HZEE -

A B A 2 T TRT I (BB 435 1,340,000 #5 JC
(3 ——4F © 1,470,000% 75) A BAR 12 @
EHL TR 2 ERE -

A4 3] 9K SRR T A 1,752,000 70 ( &
——4F 1 2,488,000 70) Z g kA > LA
PG TFAEE 2 TRUEFHA) -

R A AR > ER O AEIZY
2 - WO A AT A > U R 5%
ERm BT BREITE W - B
B 2 A K R FH T 5 416,875,000%5 0T ©
WA s ARTF 2 ERR L MM E Y
3 HER TG A H (R S A R -

AGE W) - A BB 2 AT el e R Y
RRAE G B (2 w3 R o bhat 8 5 5
o P AR 482 A UL A v B BTG 1 B e U
BN > B% M B AR St 5 A
7O A A R 14.6% 2 B BLAAF Y - B
T30 i PR 2 B 4 AL AR M T 40 R T
IR A T 5.5 KO TEUI U ] HL B A 4 4
RER/E -
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15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 15. Wity ee
2012 2011
ot St ZE 4
HK$°000 HKS$°000
THT FHsIT
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, s BRI

at fair value 125 THE
Amount shown under current assets IR BN G R TE N 2 &8 - 2,991
Amount shown under non-current assets 5| JA I VB & A T 2 45 2,051 -
2,051 2,991

At the end of the reporting period, the available-for-sale
investment is stated at fair value, which have been determined
based on bid prices quoted in an active market.

Particulars of the investee company as at 30th April, 2012 and
2011 are as follows:

TR S 30 [RD A5 SRRy > T R B AR 0
(MR > ARG IS B 7 P i AR E -

PR RIS % — A B AR
HA=1THZEHEmT -

Proportion of
nominal value of
Place of Class of issued share capital
Name of company incorporation Principal activities shares held held by the Group
S 1 P 45
ksl CEATRA
LR ERUp AL B> 37 1 JBe Aty 2 3800 i ¥ b 5
MelcoLot Limited Cayman Islands Provision of lottery-related ~ Ordinary shares 3.4%
(“Melco™) B2 RES technologies, systems and 1% fii
HEIREA R A solutions
([ HTEEERF 1) PR MR ARBA T - R K

LRAES

Melco is a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange. As at 31st October, 2011, an objective
evidence of impairment was considered to exist amid the presence
of a significant and prolonged decline in the fair value of the
available-for-sale investment and accordingly, impairment loss of
HK$1,025,000 had been recognised and reclassified into loss for
the year. As at 30th April, 2012, the fair value of the available-for-
sale investment has increased and such increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve.

BB ERF Sy W S B ZE R BT A F] o i
T——4EFH=1—0  mR T atey &
2N TR AECIR R Bk SO B A7 7E
2z FEEE - Wk RN EER
1,025,000 35 7T SMf7 516 H 75 87 40 S 2 AR 48 B M
oo R FE—"AFWH=+H > a{EaE
Ei' = /A (= b | N1 /N Y [ B 1
(ERE1RE > O #2741 oA T 3231
BB EAG R BE
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86-87

As at 30th April, 2012, the management expects that the
investment will be held for more than one year and accordingly,
the available-for-sale investment is reclassified as non-current asset.

On 20th February, 2009, the Group entered into an agreement to
dispose of a wholly owned subsidiary, Talent Focus Industries
Limited (“TFIL”) and the disposal was completed before 30th
April, 2009. TFIL agreed with the Group to repay the outstanding
amount included in other receivables due to the Group of
HK$7,000,000, which was unsecured and interest-free, in seven
monthly equal instalments from Ist September, 2010 to 31st
March, 2011. The fair value of the other receivable at the date of
disposal of TFIL was estimated to be approximately HK$4
million which was determined based on a discount rate of 29.7%.

During the year ended 30th April, 2011, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$842,000 in respect of the said balance was
recognised for the difference between the carrying amount as at
31st October, 2010 of HK$6,083,000 and the discounting effect of
the expected future cash flow at the rate of approximately 29.7%
according to the rescheduled repayment term. From 31st October,
2010, the Group had received repayment of HK$2,300,000 from
TFIL according to schedule and recognised imputed interest
income of HK$88,000. The carrying amount at 30th April, 2011
was HK$3,029,000, of which HK$2,035,000 and HK$994,000
was classified as current and non-current. An impairment loss of
HKS$1,500,000 was also recognised on another balance with TFIL
which was included in deposits and prepayments in prior years.

During the year ended 30th April, 2012, the Group received full
repayment of HK$4,200,000 from TFIL and recognised imputed
interest income of HK$632,000 and a reversal of impairment loss
on balances with a former subsidiary of HK$539,000 in profit or
loss. In addition, the Group received repayment of HK$1,460,000
from TFIL of which an impairment loss was previously recognised
on such balance. Accordingly, a reversal of impairment loss on
balances with a former subsidiary was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 30th April, 2012.

A FE-TAEMA =T R
FEA BRI — 4 o b e
B IR E B E -

AN TERESAETH R AREEET S —
Hak o HER2EHEA A BRAREEA R
AFN(TEBRED > ZEBEE R ZFERIIFE
PO H =+ HATTER o 524w B 4R [ 1 2 i
TR -EERA-HE E A=
T B e H DA R S G R A R
£2 8] 2w A e Ath B iCRIE 2 o 18 2 A I
fo 8. 3K TE 7,000,000 #5 JC o i H B R AR A
H o> 3% H A FE R IE 2 A PE AL 5140 25
HEIG > TR E29. 7% B E

RE_F——FWA=THILFE > B
MEE —F—-FF A=+ —HZEHE
6,083,000 G > B AR 48 5 4 BKAF W4 5%
R B3R £ 29. 7% w5 2 T A AR A B 4 v i
WA M 2 2550 > TR A B bl 4%
% 2 WE 5 £842,000 0 - H —&F—%F
A= — R AR FAR R AT
Wi [7] 542 462,300,000 5 70 2 32 2% > 3 MERR
BA UL A 88,0000 0T © i - FE——4F N
A=+ H Z B i 43,029,000 ¢ > H
2,035,000 JC 1% 994,000 JC 57 J8 5 T B K
FEVLE o IR E LR R AL & R T AT EE
2 BLER AR Oy — 5 R W R 93 (E K5 48.1,500,000
WG

WEE-F—"FNH =+ HIEEE > &
2 ] 4 Wi 9 52 4 4,200,000 7 78 2 52 3K
S A 8 25 R e R A SRR S IR A 632,000 7T
T if B — 52 FiT B B 2 W) 22 4 B3 e Dok 1 s
T 71 539,000 7T  BLAb - AR 4 E i o] R
1,460,000 70 2 38 3K > Hop Bl e Al 1%
A AL B TR B E G IE o I > ghB— 5
B A F 2 K R R I G R B R E
TE AR A = H R AR .
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17. INVENTORIES

17.

LS

2012 2011

ot St ZE 4

HK$°000 HKS$°000

THT FHIC

Raw materials and consumables JEA R S TE FE A 20,611 32,942
Work in progress 2 B 5,368 6,814
Finished goods B 2,322 6,365
28,301 46,121

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B 5 B I M ok

2012 2011

I

HK$’000 HKS$°000

Tt THIC

Trade receivables & 5 BN KR 53,505 63,519
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts J# : IR (516) (277)
52,989 63,242

Receivable from a former subsidiary JRE WL — 5 i BB 3 ) 2 B

— due within one year (Note 16) ——4ENBN B (M aEL6) - 2,035
Others HAth 999 445
53,988 65,722

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

AEMG TR HFF 25 WA 30290
oo R A 45 R IRE - B 5 MR W SR AT
I S R 3 A 42 3 O ) 22 90 2 R e A
s

2012 2011

ZR-TAE ZE A

HK$’000 HKS$’000

THT Tt

Within 30 days 30H A 21,825 28,642
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H 18,192 22,643
Between 61 and 90 days 61%90H 10,801 8,601
Over 90 days 90 H DAk 2,171 3,356
52,989 63,242
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will apply an
internal credit assessment policy to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and define credit limits by customer. Management
closely monitors the credit quality of trade receivables. Included in
the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$22,079,000 (2011: HK$19,507,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss, as there is no significant change
in credit quality and the amounts still considered recoverable
based on historical payment experience. The Group does not hold
any collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors which are past

due but not impaired:

BT B 30 At HE WO M (4

AT T3 & P AT > A SEE AT N
B MG R BUR - REEERF 2 EE R
W HFTH & & 25548 - %Y E
REGMBCHEZ FHEE - REMZ Y
JEWGKIE AL B > 45 AR T 48 (522,079,000
T (T F——4F 1 19,507,000 75 it #H
FE N p G P S 3 NS
B HARPEMA A AT 3R A0 B > 5% 2 BTEA B
SRS T[] o ] LA A NI R 3 U0 A K
TE Ol s TR A o A 2 o1 7 0l 1 25
AR (T AT HEH 5 o 4 15 B it -

O 00 1L 51 08 3 2 50 5 B WA O 2 MR B
SATIE

2012 2011

R T4 T4

HK$°000 HK$°000

THT Tt

Within 90 days 90 H A 21,136 18,102
Over 90 days 90H LI E 943 1,405
22,079 19,507

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade receivables

which are past due but not impaired are generally recoverable.

ARABEAS AR 308 1 AR B > 2 26 S0 EL F7 40 3ok (L
B 5 EMCR I — BT i) o

The following is the movement in the allowance for bad and SRR ST
doubtful debts:
2012
—® - —UE
HK$’000 HKS$°000
T#L THTT
At beginning of year ) 277 266
Impairment losses recognised O e RR R E e 18 336 168
Reversal of allowance for bad and IR ]
doubtful debts (69) (157)
Amounts written off during the year AR A FE DRUAS AT YA [m] 177 S
as uncollectible 2 AR (28) -
Atend of year TR 516 277
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19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19. #UTHEERNBLE
The bank balances of the Group carried prevailing market interest AR 2 BRAT AR TR B AT 0.01JE R 0.5
rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.5% (2011: 0.01% to 0.5%) per JE (O ——4F 0 0.01EE0.5H) 2 HATTH
annum. BRIREE -
Included in the Group’s bank balances and cash is an aggregate AELEFMZMITHEBRIBSBIEALLY
amount of approximately HK$2,322,000 (2011: HK$517,000) 2,322,000 70 (ZF ——4 : 517,000 7C)
denominated in RMB, the foreign currency of respective group £y N RS OFH B S B 8 22 AN (. -
entities.

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 20. B 5 B Ut HE AT K I D B 45 4 B B

DEPOSITS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

Gin-dii!
B oy AT S TR i U3 TR 465 SR IR 2 3 5
MRS Z IR AT T

2012 2011
e et R4
HK$°000 HK$’000
TH#0 T-H0

Trade payables B 5 EA A
Within 30 days 30H A 6,734 10,187
Between 31 and 60 days 31Z260H 3,235 6,855
Between 61 and 90 days 61%90H 4,708 3,705
Over 90 days 90 H A 4,444 8,827
19,121 29,574
Other payables A AT R 11,260 14,462
30,381 44,036

The credit period on purchases of goods is ranging from 30 to 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are within the credit timeframe.

Included in the Group’s trade and other payables and accrued
expenses are aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HK$15,318,000 (2011: HK$19,637,000) and HK$14,476,000
(2011: HK$12,868,000) denominated in RMB, the foreign
currency of respective group entities, respectively.

B 2 E RN T30 90H - AEMERA
SV g LR SRE > R T AT R AR I
S H 5 R AR -

AL 2 E T e HA AT 3K E LA K 5T 2
FAALEE A L4 B £915,318,0009 00 ( —F—
—4F 119,637,000457T) [ 14,476,000%5 7 (—
F——4F 1 12,868,000 70) 25 A B W (HH
AL ET I 2 AR FHE o
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21. TRUST RECEIPT LOANS AND BILLS 21, £t Bk B AT R
PAYABLE
2012 2011
e St 3 TR
HKS$’000 HK$000
T#L TWHIT
Secured trust receipt loans EEE IR ERANE §-v /e 8,880 12,225
Bills payable JREAT B4 1,839 1,133
10,719 13,358
At the end of the reporting period, bills payable are non-interest TR A S ARRE > REAT SRR ASTEE
bearing and aged within 30 days. HRES 7530 H AR ©
Trust receipt loans carry interest at effective interest rates (which {5 FEUSCIR SR B R 3 (IR AR A5 R & 40 F)
are also equal to contracted interest rates) range from 2.5% to 6% )N RS EOH (= F——4F 2.5
(2011: 2.5% to 6%) per annum and are matured within 60 days. JEAEGH) FHE 5 AR60 H R F -
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22. BORROWINGS 22. fitE
2012 2011
—R— A “E -4
HK$’000 HKS$’000
TH#IL T
Unsecured bank loan ( Note a) AP ERA T 3 (W Ea) 3,646 7,786
Loans from a director, JHARERIER

repayable on demand (Note b) —ZERRR (D) 10,539 10,539
14,185 18,325

Carrying amount repayable: JREAB 2 SRR I
On demand or within one year JEAE LR B — 4 N R 14,185 18,325

Included in amount shown under current FEAFIN R E A 1E
liabilities: JH R HOH

Carrying amount of bank loans that are SN —E N H
repayable within one year but contain a A5 ] HERE R IR R

repayment on demand clause SRAT AR T (B 3,646 7,786

Notes: et -

(a) The bank loans are unsecured and bear interest at Hong Kong (a) SRAT R TEHCHH > 3107 9 s S B R
prime rate plus 0.5% per annum, the best lending rate minus 1% SPNEAR0.5)8 ~ 5 (A ORI S 1 i
and the prevailing interest rate minus 2% per annum. The KBRS A2 E 5T R o SRATRK
weighted average effective interest rate on the bank loan is 1.1% JIRET- ) B R R 2 S A LU (% —
per annum (2011: 5.3% per annum). —4E  GAES3JE) o

(b) The loans are advanced from Mr. Li Tung Lok, a director and a (b) TR HEAANAEGERBENZ AN
shareholder of the Company with significant influence over the AR OR 2R R 4 e R AT By e
Company, and are interest-free, unsecured and repayable on B ISR R R TR o R —
demand. Subsequent to 30th April, 2012, the director has agreed THEMA=THE s SERCRBEAY
not to demand the repayment in full or in part of the loans due W F— AN A NH S 2 TR
from the Group on or before 28th June, 2013. 3R AR SR [ T 45 R 2 2 3lEs A K -
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23. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 23.
The Group leased certain plant and machinery and motor vehicles
under finance leases. The average lease term is 2 years (2011: 2
years). The interest rates underlying the obligations under finance

gV

A A B O AL 40 AL B 2 T R B R A
PLRGRHE o P A A WA (T ——
A AR o VB FHATRYE 2 AR BRI RN
AR H W E B T3.25 ) Ea)H (T ——
AE L FRAE32SIEE425E) o

leases are fixed at respective contract dates and range from 3.25%
t0 4% (2011: 3.25% to 4.25% per annum).

Present value of
minimum lease payments
BACALEE A sk 2 BUE
2012
R4
HK$°000
T#xT

Minimum lease payments

AR Ak
2012 2011
—® 4

HK$°000

T#T

SR
HK$°000
T-H#L

HK$°000
T

Amounts payable under finance R ST A
leases JREAH FKIE
Within one year —4ER 466 1,184 452 1,131
In more than one year and not e A — A
more than two years (ER SRS 55 466 54 452
More than two years but not T 408 T AT
more than five years B A FLAR = 55 = 54
521 1,705 506 1,637
Less: Future finance charges W RACRE B as) (63) - -
Present value of lease obligation — FH&J7KE 2 Bifh 506 1,637 506 1,637
Less: Amount due for settlement 38 : ZHA+ A8 A &
within 12 months (shown B 2 IR (B
under current liabilities) WEEEET) 452) (1,375)
Amount due for settlement after 12 28 %+ 1 A £ &%
months ZHKIH 54 262
Included in amount shown under &} A %1 A i B) & {518
current liabilities: NaIE -
Obligation that are repayable within 8 —4F ki 1% H
one year but contain a repayment 1 7] & R 2K (1R
on demand clause ek 2 KI5 245 719
Obligation that are repayable more 78 it i i —4F 1% i 1
than one year but contain a AL n] BEIRF 2R
repayment on demand clause BRI 2 AR AfS = 245
245 964

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the
leased assets with a carrying amount of HK$1,752,000 (2011:
HK$2,488,000).
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24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. A
Number of shares Nominal value
Bem¥H Wifi
2012 2011 2012 2011
BTk “F ki Rk “F——f
HK$°000 HKS$000
T T
Authorised: HE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each A (E0.08W T 2
At beginning and end of year LB L 1,500,000,000  1,500,000,000 120,000 120,000
Redeemable preference shares of TR (50025 0.2
HKS$0.02 each A S 500,000,000 500,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: CEIT R
Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each 15T (E0.085 T2
At beginning and end of year RN AR 767,373,549 767,373,549 61,390 61,390

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital in both
years.

A A BEAS T 5% v {1842 1 4 S )y

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 4E#k



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For A 2 A P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2012 #% — % — —4EPY H =+ H [L4E#

25.

20.

94-95

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period and during the year, deferred
tax liabilities (assets) have been recognised in respect of the

temporary differences attributable to the following:

25.

3 S B £ 45

R S 5 30 ] 45 SRR B AR 1 > A 4R [ 2 i LA
N A THE A 2 W IR 2 B R RS R I BUH A R
(EE) -

Accelerated
tax depreciation Tax losses Total
ImRE BT BiH b H Bk
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THIT THIT THIT
At 1st May, 2010 N_F—FFERA—H 2,085 (2,085) -
Charge (credit) to consolidated G AEIATR R
statement of comprehensive ok (FEA)
income (Note 9) (K17£9) 548 (547) 1
At 30th April, 2011 o E——tE A = H 2,633 (2,632) |
(Credit) charge to consolidated G A AR R
statement of comprehensive (FFA) F1BR
income (Note 9) (Bt7E9) (104) 104 -
At 30th April, 2012 oA = A 2,529 2,528) 1

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of HK$439,745,000 (2011: HK$436,724,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of HK$15,324,000 (2011:
HKS$15,950,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$424,421,000 (2011:
HK$420,774,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$969,000 (2011: HK$662,000) that will expire within 5 years.
Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

For the year ended 30th April, 2011, the Group entered into
finance lease arrangements in respect of the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment with a total capital value at the
inception of the leases of HK$2,144,000.

26.

A R A R A5 R > AR [ AT R B T
2 B JEE51H439,745,0004 0 ( —F ——4 ¢
436,724,000%5 7T ) AT A $K 81 oK 2 % A o
AR [ O A% A e 4R A RO 4 B IH
15,324,000 % JC ( & — —4F © 15,950,000
WET0) > H FR A ST TR A B gk R ARV - i
Sl 2 A B T 424,421,000 78 (T ——4F ¢
420,774,000 %5 70 ) 7 58 I8 AL BT A B o ok
il 52 B0 JE B 48 B 45 s TUAF T 2 2 k48
969,000 7T ( — & ——4F : 662,000%7T) °
At 5 T 15 T A R A A o

FHEIEBERY

BEFE——4HENUA =+ IRER > AE
V9 Jf 7 T A4 PR A A A 5 2,144,000 5
JLZ W W SRR ST S LA LBk -
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27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27. BRI
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding R AR &E R > AEFEARBITZE
capital commitments as follows: AERE T

2012 2011
e e

HK$000 HK$000
T#x Tt

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition 4 BRI ~ #eas I

of property, plant and equipment A AT AMERTE
contracted for but not provided in the i BT RER A
consolidated financial statements ZEARB 7,066 13,257
28. LEASE COMMITMENTS 28. RRIERYE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments TSRS ) T Al R R > AR ER IR AR S 1A
in respect of premises for future minimum lease payments under ZEURR ) 3 S A 2 o A i L R 2 R Af
operating leases, which fall due as follows: 9/ o E G
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#L TWHIT
Within one year —4E R 8,835 8,710
In the second to fifth year inclusive B (EETE W) 32,492 32,168
Over five years A 39,204 47,246
80,531 88,124
Leases are negotiated for a term of twenty years for certain B T O AP B 2 A R o PR
production facilities in the PRC and terms of one to two years for FE B AR RE RS o A S 2 A
other premises with fixed monthly rentals. AR By — B WA - W A MHE A EE -
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96-97

The Group participates in two defined contribution schemes
which are an Employee Retirement Scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme™) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of these schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

All full time employees are eligible to join the ORSO Scheme after
completion of three continuous months of service with the Group
and opt to contribute a fixed percentage of 3% or 5% of their
monthly basic salary whereas the Group contributes an equivalent
amount to that scheme. After December 2000, all employees
exceeding a specified income range are required to join the MPF
Scheme and contribute a fixed percentage (currently 5%) of their
relevant income but cap at a maximum amount of HK$1,000 per
month to the scheme, which contribution is matched by the
Group. For employees joining both schemes, the total
contributions made by each of the Group and the employees
which exceed the mandatory contributions required by the MPF
Scheme are paid to the ORSO Scheme as voluntary contribution.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

Contributions to the above schemes for the year ended 30th April,
2012 made by the Group amounted to HK$2,107,000 (2011:
HKS$2,460,000).

At 30th April, 2012, plant and equipment with a carrying value of
HK$1,752,000 (2011: HK$2,488,000) was pledged to secure
finance leases (2011: certain banking facilities, bank loans and
finance leases) granted to the Group.

AR M 2 B JEE LA R o 0 B A AR
R S AR IR 3 Ao 1 R 2 M BB KT 1
(TBESEBIRFH ) ]) Bt —FF T4+ A
AR 5 A 2 2 < ) R 91 e ST 2 o A
AEEFE (REEstE ) - 2% st#z
HE A ZFE AR R TURSE AL EE
PR -

JT A AT AR B A IR TS A 48 18 — 1R A
HRINE G2 B R ARG 8 > o n] 324
Fie oA H #3% 88 5% 2 [ 78 B 4 ELAE
HEFR > 107 A S R DAAH [R] 4 AR B AT S E
AR o R R BRI % > A
e A B 2 R B ¥E S BUE R et
B MR E A B A 2 EH L (B
5% ) Bt FIAE B HER > MEAE K B BR A A
H 11,0009 7t > 11 A< 5 B 7R UM [R] 6 AR
HEZK o SN ] RF 2 B 5% W JE T 0 R 2 i
T oo AREE AR B & B 2 AR 1
50 P A B 2 o o R ST A SRR
REHE] > 1E 2 BIRTHER -

A B 2 v I g B r e I U A 2
FE PR RAR A8 o A BZH ) a2 IR K
A A wE B AF B AR S T 2
Ao LUE BT BRAR A o A 42 1R IR AR A1
AE 2 RIEE S A s K o

BEF - _"FEWA=Z+HIREE > A%
& ) bk S S 2 B3R 452,107,000 45 T
(T F——4 1 2,460,000#:7C) °

W FE— TN HA=Z+H > EEE
1,752,000% 7T ( —F——4 :2,488,0007 7T
Z M S TR > AR B2 T A 4E E
ZRVERLA) (T — 4 AT ERATRVE
SRATE K SRS FHAY) o
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Equity-settled share option scheme:

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 29th November,
2006. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the eligible persons
(“Eligible Persons”) as defined in the Scheme with the opportunity
to acquire interests in the Company and to encourage the Eligible
Persons to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Board of Directors of the Company may grant
options to Eligible Persons, including, but not limited to, full-time
employees or directors (excluding Mr. Li Tung Lok) of the
Company and subsidiaries (the “Eligible Employee(s)”) or his or
her associate.

A share option granted by the Company at nil consideration is
exercisable at any time for a period determined by its directors
which shall not be later than the day immediately preceding the
fifth anniversary of the date of grant, where the acceptance date
should not be later than 28 days after the date of offer. The
exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the
option under the Scheme shall be determined by the Board of
Directors but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the shares; (ii) the closing price per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; or (iii) the average closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options.

As at 30th April, 2012, an aggregate of 28,568,000 share options
granted under the Scheme remained outstanding representing
3.7% of the issued share capital of the Company. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which the options may be granted
under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme. However,
the total maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue in such 12-month
period up to and including the proposed date of grant, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. No option shall
be granted to the Eligible Persons if the aggregate value of shares
which may be subscribed in respect of outstanding options exceed
(a) in case of an Eligible Employee, 5 times of his or her then gross
annual salary and (b) in any other cases, HK$5 million, or any
other amount approved by the Board of Directors either generally
or on a case by case basis.

JeA 4t B e B 38

WRER LT NE+—A LR
T R RIS > ALY F) R A I PR ) (T 5%
At o ZEHB B RS T A HIREZ S
R (T ERA LD e AARLH
REA > S SO A BN L AR R RO
SRR i B 8 T AR 2 W S Ay 2 A
{H o AAFESEG A G EH AR
JBcHE - T A% S A B RS N LA AE (HA R
Ay 7] B FL M o ) 2 A A B EEE R OR
BEER G (T3 BRI A 1) S8
At e

il A2 2 S B R A7 B - % AT B AN AT
B B S TR AF AT — > ik
A H IR REB IR R R 28 H o AR
B 45 1 S P HEE 2 AT (o A (g iRt
B HEFH AR hEET AfTREE >
AR LU B de B A (D TR 5 (i)
B H O R B8 2 H) B3 s H
RV BT 5 (i) B R i B A i
H T AIr TR 2 2€ H B S B e H R R
BB EIUCT A -

Mo E—TAEH =+ 8 > REEEH R
2 A 4£28,568,000 43 i EHE 2y A7 R ATE
A E TAAN A B ATIEAR 2.3.7% © Y5
18T BEAZ 2 W R T v R IR 73 e v
H G @A A m e st #lE H 2 B
BEATIRAL0% © SRTIT > PRAITAT AR AT {of o A
AT A BEBEAT 2 BE Fe v AR B > RAS:
FBHAS S TN IRE 2 VBT IEAR30% o RAEAS
N E B R SRR E - T AAT 124 A BT A
T AT AT R ) 245 B T R 52+ I R RE 9 %
ZRYECE > R AR W
P B (dEEZ B ) Z 5% 1248 A W K
ZEBATRON 1Y% o A B A2 A
AT 8 PR AT T I 2 G 07 A 4 BB 2 () (i
BEASE BT ) M R 2 AR RS &
(b) G AT Aa] HoAth 4% WL 11 55) 5,000,0009 7T 8¢
2 4l — B AR A D bk o 2 AT AT
fih 458 > HIRAS ) a% A B A N 3% 0
HE o
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  31. PABBy RuBEuie 2 A4k 38 5 ()

(continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TR RE S LR S A AN T R
options held by the directors and employees during the year: TR 2 S
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise at 1st May, Movements during the year at 30th April,
Option type Date of grant price 2011 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2012
e S B4
HHA—H NS WH=+H
SIS RSN il (i AL (%5741} (2t d ) WALT
HKS$
T

Directors 11th May, 2007 0.70 2,700,000 - - - 2,700,000

HH ZEFLELATH
3rd December, 2009 0.455 1,890,000 - - - 1,890,000

“EENEFNZR
Employees 11th May, 2007 0.70 13,425,000 - - (1,050,000) 12,375,000

8 ZEFLELATH
3rd December, 2009 0.455 15,288,250 - - (3,685,250) 11,603,000

“EENEFNZR
33,303,250 - - @735250) 28,568,000

Exercisable at the end TGS IR AT AT
of the year 28,568,000
Weighted average exercise  ITHEF-#17{fi (g

price HKSO0.57485% - - HKSOS097  HKSO.SS4iE7G
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  31. PAJBfy RSB Z ATk 38 5 ()

(continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share

options held by the directors and employees during the prior year:

N AR T R BT RRAR 2 R RRE
bR )

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise at Ist May, Movements during the year at 30th April,
Option type Date of grant price 2010 Granted Transfer Forfeited 2011
e S 42 R-F——4
HiA—H RS WH=+H
SRS il i AL [&£;:31 LT ] ) WARATHE
HKS$
BT
Directors 11th May, 2007 0.70 2,700,000 - - - 2,700,000
H ZEFLEI R
3rd December, 2009 0.455 1,890,000 - - - 1,890,000
EFNEFTAZH
Employees 11th May, 2007 0.70 13,500,000 - - (75,000) 13,425,000
E& ZEELEI R
3rd December, 2009 0455 17,305,750 - - (2,017,500) 15,288,250
“EENEFNZR
35,395,750 - - (2,092,500) 33,303,250
Exercisable at the end S AT AT
of the year 33,303,250

Weighted average exercise  HITHEF-#17{fi (g
price HKS$0.567% ¢

- - HKS0464%#70  HKS$0.574% 0

Share options were granted on 11th May, 2007 and 3rd December,
2009 to different counterparties. Two-third of total share options
can be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance whereas
one-third of total share options can be exercised on and after the
first anniversary of the grant date, provided the grantee has been
in continuous employment with the Group for one year, until the
date immediately preceding the fifth anniversary of the grant date.

The binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair values of the share options are based on the directors’ best
estimates. The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions. In relation to the share options
granted by the Company, the Group recognised the total expense
of HK$750,000 in staff costs for the year ended 30th April, 2011.

ARFAIR-FFLFLA+—H LA ZFF
U+ ZH = B R [ 52 5 6 1% T
HE o 2 VA0 R FBCHE -2 = 70 T A A O s e
H BB AT 60 - 5 2B 2 =70 —
RIPAT 2 i 1 o A A e AR AT 0 A
PR NSRS R ALEN —4F > 5
2R B AR — H ALk .

AN AR A I AR A R I R 2 A
8 o BB B RE N A R 57 1 2 5 B R (R
Ty H N BARAEFITAR & o B AR
ZABELWE 3 AN R 38 0 (W B T FBURERD)
ek s - B AN Az 2 R » A
LR E T ——FWH =+ H IRERE
fifERR B LA 2 #B %750,0009 7C -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32.

In the ordinary course of its business, the Group entered into the
following transactions with related party:

(A) Interest-free loans are obtained from Mr. Li Tung Lok, a
director and a shareholder of the Company with
significant influence over the Company, as disclosed in
Note 22.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other

members of key management during the year as follows:

B 5 38 5
A% S TS B R TS o SR T AT T
BT

(A)  MBEARFEAEREBN AR
GER ¥ 3 EduE Pt e
SRR T R M RE22 o

(B) HEEHABZHM

AN F H R A A B B R
FRZBEIT

2012 2011

o S ZE——4F

HK$°000 HK$’000

T THIT

Salaries i 5,089 5,145
Retirement benefit schemes HRARAE T 165 203
Share-based payments DSy 2o STl 2 Ak ik - 200
5,254 5,548

The remuneration of directors of the Company and key
management is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. LEEHE A alwENE

SUBSIDIARIES

The following are the particulars regarding the Company’s UTFER - FE N - ——4FENH =
subsidiaries as at 30th April, 2012 and 2011 which principally THEFEREREHESE EadAHEZ
affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The directors of AANTIME AT AT EEHR
the Company are of the opinion that a full list of all the By o B H BT A B A B 2 4% B R R T
subsidiaries will be of excessive length. These subsidiaries operate B o BRAB RSN o LW A B R
principally in the place of establishment/incorporation unless FLMAT /A BT Hh B AR A o

otherwise indicated.

Proportion of nominal value of registered capital/
issued share capital held by

FHAEMART RTRAZ b
Place of establishment/ Paid up registered capitall
Name of subsidiary incorporation Principal activities Issued share capital Company subsidiary
BB A 218 ot/ R CHHI A/ LTk A HBA
2012 2012 2011
S0 St S S0 Sl S
The Industrial Investment Cayman Islands Tnvestment holding 2,050 ordinary shares of HKS! each 24 244 97.56 97.56
Company Limited HEHE it 2050 B AL e 2 S
QPL (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 408,000,772 ordinary shares of 100 100 - -
WEAEARAT Eif Edsdl HK$0.04 each
408,000,721 it 0.0 .
LEER
QPL Limited (Note a) Hong Kong Manufacture and sale of 2 ordinary shares of HKS! each and - - 100 100
RERIRAR (fita) Eif integrated circuit leadframes, 1,000 non-voting deferred shares of
heatsinks and stiffeners HKS] each (Noteb)
WERHESMERSIRE - IRBREAE T EER
AR R RL000BFRELETL
IRSEREOR (i)
QPL (US) Inc. The USA Distribution of integrated 150,603 ordinary shares of no par value, 664 664 336 36
FH circuit leadframes and paid up to USD4,071,281
investment holding 150,603 AT F i

DRERERIMERER S CRES40LBIET

FHEF (I AR (Notee)  ThePRC Distribution of stamped USD3,000,000 - - 100 100
i) G leadframes and moulds 3,000,0003 ¢
FHRERLS SRIE R TR
Notes: MaE -
(a) Operating principally in the PRC. (a) TR PR AR o
(b) The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, are practically (b) HASE B R 2 R AT By > B I A
of no economic value. KPS IEAE -
(©) A foreign wholly-owned corporate. (©) ELANGE hag-e
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end R A > WE PR B 2 R AT AT ] {25 7%
of the year. I5 o
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34. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL 34.
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

A2y i) S B BB

A B AR 2 R i 30 1D A SRR 2 S AR DL
Wk 2 ERALE

2012 2011

—% -k T

HK$°000 HK$°000

Tt THIC

Other receivables A R T R E = 994

Interests in subsidiaries TR 2w 22 Mt 8,719 14,460

Available-for-sale investment CIRES7 R gy 2,051 2,991

Amount due from subsidiaries JE A o6 B 2 T ST 17,386 76,227

Other current assets HAth i B & 607 2,782
Borrowings fE (10,539) (10,539)
Other current liabilities HoAth 7 B & 5 (1,573) (1,605)

16,651 85,310

Share capital ( Note 24) JEAS (7t 24) 61,390 61,390

Share premium and reserves JBE A9 e feti (44,739) 23,920

16,651 85,310
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B 5 B B

The financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years, as
extracted from the Group’s published audited consolidated financial
statements, are set out below:

TURNOVER AND (LOSS) PROFIT FOR
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

AR J 7R S 1 0 5 T B B4 8 2 A S R > T
Bk A TSRS I AL AR S BT IRGR

B SR WU A A BE B SRR O ) )

For the year ended 30th April,

BENH=1HILEE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ZETBNE ZERTNE ZF-FE DR R T

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Tt T Tt Tt T

Turnover R 337,661 275441 325,287 353,998 279,131
(Loss) profit before taxation Wi (k18 ) i F) (43,052) (94,644) 25,081 (12,125) (5,497)
Taxation charge BiTE (1,080) (1,207) (1,530) (1,028) (990)

(Loss) profit for the year AR

attributable to shareholders JEG (R s A1) (44,132) (95.,851) 23,551 (13,153) (6,487)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B 22

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES & e B B AR

At 30th April,
WA =+H
2010 2011 2012

BENE —EBE S SRk
HKS$°000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
Fr  FET FEE Tn FER

Property, plant and equipment ~ #)3&  ##5 X 122,042 52,973 51,072 60,066 54,794
Available-for-sale investment e ERE - - - - 2,051
Derivative financial instruments  f7A4= 4 fil T2 12,923 1,211 - - =
Other receivable oA B e T - 4,706 - 994 =
Advance payment for property, Ht#)%E - #as X
plant and equipment R 2 E - - - 838 4,638
Current assets B G 169,652 97,081 141,726 128,125 99,299
Current liabilities T A AR (116,781) (78,783) (88,474)  (100,176) (77,848)
187,836 77,188 104,324 89,847 82,934
Share capital A 61,388 61,388 61,390 61,390 61,390
Share premium and reserves I A9 T 18 % ot 122,102 11,918 39,160 24,965 18,587
Shareholders’ fund R & 4 183,490 73,306 100,550 86,355 79,977
Long term borrowings R 135 - - - -
Accrued expenses g2 H 4,210 3,882 3,555 3,229 2,902
Deferred taxation R TE 1 _ _ 1 1
Obligations under finance leases Fill & fH %) R & - - 219 262 54
187,836 77,188 104,324 89,847 82,934
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